Fabrication of Carbon Nanomaterials based Counter Electrode for Dye Sensitized Solar Cells



By Muhammad Awais Mahboob

> Reg. No. 00000117685 Session 2015-17

Supervised by Dr. Nadia Shahzad

U.S Pakistan Center for Advanced Studies in Energy National University of Sciences and Technology H-12, Islamabad, Pakistan July 2018

Fabrication of Carbon Nanomaterials based Counter Electrode for Dye Sensitized Solar Cells



By Muhammad Awais Mahboob Reg. No. 00000117685 Session 2015-17

> Supervised by Dr. Nadia Shahzad

A Thesis Submitted to U.S Pakistan Center for Advanced Studies in Energy in partial fulfillment of requirement for degree of Master of Science in

ENERGY SYSTEM ENGINEERING

U.S Pakistan Center for Advanced Studies in Energy National University of Sciences and Technology H-12, Islamabad, Pakistan July 2018

THESIS ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE

Certified that final copy of MS thesis written by Muhammad Awais Mahboob, (<u>Registration No. 00000117685</u>), of USPCAS-E, has been vetted by undersigned found in all respect NUST Statues/Regulations, is free of plagiarism, error, and mistakes and is accepted as partial fulfillment for award MS degree. It is further certified that necessary amendments as pointed out by GEC members of the scholar have also been incorporated in the said thesis.

Signature:
Supervisor: Dr. Nadia Shahzad
Date:
Signature (HoD):
Date:
Signature (Dean/Principal):
Date:

Certificate

This is to certify that work in this thesis has been carried out by Muhammad Awais Mahboob and Completed under my supervision in U.S Pakistan Center for Advanced Studies in Energy (USPCAS-E), National University of Sciences and Technology, H-12 sector, Islamabad.

Supervisor

Dr. Nadia Shahzad USPCAS-E NUST Islamabad

GEC Member # 1

Dr. Muhammad Imran Shahzad National Centre for Physics (NCP) Quaid-e-Azam University (QAU) Islamabad

GEC Member # 2

Dr. Zuhair S. Khan USPCAS-E NUST Islamabad

GEC Member # 3

HoD – ESE

Principal / Dean

Dr. Naseem Iqbal USPCAS-E NUST Islamabad

Dr. Naseem Iqbal USPCAS-E NUST Islamabad

Dr. Zuhair S. Khan USPCAS-E NUST Islamabad

Dedication

To,

My father who gave me the greatest gift "He trusted me"

My mother who was there to support when every else deserted me.

To my family who took my troubles as their own.

To my teachers who instilled the love of learning in me.

To my friends who are the most valuable asset I have. Who supported me and helped me.

Acknowledgments

I would like to thank Allah Almighty without whose help I would not have been able to complete this work. All the help and support from my parents and teachers were only because of Allah's Will.

I would like to thank my supervisor Dr. Nadia Shahzad for her all the support and guidance she provided me throughout the thesis work and co-supervisor.

Dr. Muhammad Imran Shahzad who supported me throughout my material characterization at National Center for Physics (NCP) Islamabad.

I would like to thank A/Principal Dr. Zuhair S Khan, HoD Dr. Naseem Iqbal, lab engineers, lab technicians, USPCAS-E and USAID for their support throughout the program.

I would also like to thank my parents who supported me throughout my life. I would also like to thank all my friends for all their help and support throughout the research work.

Abstract

The main idea behind this research is the fabrication of low cost and efficient solar cells, which will make this technology economically feasible. The task of this research is to fabricate carbon nanomaterial based counter electrode for dye sensitized solar cells (DSSCs). DSSCs are 3rd generation solar cells which are traditionally fabricated employing platinum based counter electrode. Since platinum is expensive and being a rare earth metal so there is need to explore highly conductive and abundant material which could replace it. Recently metal oxides like NiO and carbon nanotubes (CNTs) have been proposed as efficient counter electrodes. In this work, a composite of NiO-CNTs is prepared as it shows potential to perform better as compared to NiO and CNTs alone. Multiple walled CNTs are dispersed in two polymers: PEDOT: PSS and polyvinyl propodilene (PVP) in 1:20 ratio. Counter electrodes of DSSC, are fabricated from NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs composite to compare the electrical properties of the counter electrodes. Results obtained from Hall Effect confirm the higher conductivity of NiO-CNTs composite. Transmittance of these three counter electrodes is also measured, which shows that these electrodes can transmit more than 70% of the light so these electrodes are suitable for transparent solar cells. Complete dye sensitized solar cells based on these counter electrodes are also assembled to check the efficiency of the solar cells.

Table of Contents

1.1	Renewable Energy	15
1.1	1.2 Worldwide renewable energy	16
1.1	1.3 Renewable energy in Pakistan	17
1.2	Fundamental working of Photovoltaic (PV)	20
1.3	Generations of solar cells	24
1.3	3.1 First Generations solar cells	25
1.3	3.2 Second Generations solar cells	25
1.3	3.3 Third Generations solar cells	25
Ch	napter summary	31
Refe	rence	32
2.1 C	Dye sensitized solar cells	34
2.2 S	Structure of Dye sensitized solar cell	36
2.2	2.1 Photo Anode	37
	2.2.1.1 TiO ₂ Photo anode	37
	2.2.1. 2 ZnO photo anode	37
2.2	2.2. Dye:	38
2.2	2.3 Electrolyte	39
2.2	2.4. Counter Electrode	40
	2.2.4.1 Platinum as a counter electrode	40
	2.2.4.2 PEDOT: PSS counter electrode	40
4	2.2.4.3 Carbon nano materials based counter electrode	41
4	2.2.4.4 Metal oxide as counter electrode	42
2.2	2.3 Working principle of dye sensitized solar cell	43
Ch	napter summary	46
3.1	1. Deposition technique for counter electrode	51
3.1	1.1 Electrospinning technique	51

3.1.1.1 Working Principle of electrospinning	53
3.1.1.2 Stepwise procedure of Electrospinning	55
3.1.2 Spin coating	56
3.1.3 Chemical Vapor deposition (CVD) Technique	58
3.2 Characterization techniques	60
3.2.1 Scanning electron microscope (SEM)	60
3.2.2 Energy dispersive spectroscopy (EDS)	62
3.2.3 X-ray Diffraction (XRD)	62
3.2.4 Hall Effect	64
3.2.5 Cyclic Voltammetry (CV)	67
3.3 Assembling of complete DSSC	69
3.3.1 Characterization of DSSC	70
Chapter summary	74
Reference:	75
4.1 Materials	77
4.2 Growth of Nanomaterials	77
4.2.1 Growth of carbon nanotubes	77
4.2.2 Growth and preparation of NiO and NiO-CNTs composite by co-	precipitation
method	79
4.3 Solution preparation for electrode deposition	
4.4 Fabrication of counter electrode by spin coating	
4.5 Assembling of complete Dye sensitized solar cell	
Chapter summary	
Reference:	
5.1 Morphological, compositional and structural analysis	87
5.1.1 SEM, EDS and XRD analysis of CNTs	87
5.1.2 SEM, EDS and XRD analysis of NiO	90

5.1.3 SEM, EDS and XRD analysis of NiO-CNTs:	94
5.1.4 Morphology of deposited films:	
5.2 UV-Vis spectroscopy analysis:	
5.3 Electrochemical analysis by cyclic voltammetry	
5.4 Electrical properties of deposited film by Hall Effect	
5.5 Efficiency comparison of DSSCs	
Chapter summary	
Reference	
6.1 Conclusion:	
6.2 proposed future works:	111
Publications:	113

List of Figures

Figure 1: Global carbon emission from fossil fuels 1900-2014	13
Figure 2 Total U.S Greenhouse Gas emissions	14
Figure 3: Worldwide energy consumption of year 2015	15
Figure 4: PV installed worldwide	17
Figure 5: Power sector in Pakistan	18
Figure 6: The estimated renewable energy potential	19
Figure 7: Advantages of renewable energy in Pakistan	20
Figure 8: Structure of a typical solar cell	21
Figure 9: Current-voltage curve of a solar cell	23
Figure 10: Multi junction solar cells	26
Figure 11: Working principle of Q dot solar cell	27
Figure 12: Working principle of Perovskite solar cells	28
Figure 13: Working principle of DSSCs	29
Figure 14: Number of Research papers in each year	35
Figure 15: Structure of DSSC	36
Figure 16: Working diagram of Dye sensitized solar cell	43
Figure 17: FLUIDNATEK LE 10 at USPCASE NUST	53
Figure 18: Control panel on elecrtospinner	54
Figure 19: Flow rate control	55
Figure 20: Spin coater in energy materials lab at USPCASE NUST	56
Figure 21: structure of spin coater	57
Figure 22: vacuum pump attached with spin coater	57
Figure 23: Schematics representation of steps of CVD process	59
Figure 24: CVD schematic diagram for CNTs activation	59
Figure 25: internal structure of scanning electron microscope (SEM)	61
Figure 26: working principle of SEM	62
Figure 27: Bragg's law as working principle of XRD	63
Figure 28: XRD machine (D-8 Advance) available at USPCASE	64
Figure 29: hall Effect measurement equipment at USPCASE NUST	65
Figure 30: Sample-mounting board	66
Figure 31: Sample kit with 0.55 Tesla magnet supplied standard with the system	66

Figure 32: Complete assembly of DSSC using microfluidic technique	70
Figure 33: Solar simulator in advance energy materials lab at USPCASE NUST	.72
Figure 34: output curve of IV measurement of solar cell at AM 1.5	73
Figure 35: CVD setup for preparation of CNTs	78
Figure 36: Flow diagram of preparation of functionalized CNTs	78
Figure 37: Flow diagram of preparation of NiO nanocomposite	.80
Figure 38: Process flow diagram for preparation of NiO-CNTs	81
Figure 39: CNTs at 5um resolution	.87
Figure 40: Mapping of CNTs on SEM image at high resolution	88
Figure 41: EDS results of the CNTs	.89
Figure 42: XRD analysis of CNTs	.90
Figure 43: Mapping of NiO on SEM image at 1um resolution	.91
Figure 44: EDS analysis of NiO	.92
Figure 45: XRD analysis of NiO	.93
Figure 46: SEM image of NiO-CNTs at 5 um	.94
Figure 47: Mapping of NiO-CNTs on SEM image at 1um resolution	.95
Figure 48: Line EDS analysis of NiO-CNTs	.96
Figure 49: XRD analysis of NiO-CNTs	.97
Figure 50: SEM of NiO-CNTs at 5um	.98
Figure 51: SEM image of NiO-CNTs deposited on PET at 500nm	.99
Figure 52:EDS analysis of NiO-CNTs	.99
Figure 53: Transparency of NiO-CNTs, CNTs and NiO based counter electrode 1	.01
Figure 54: CV results of NiO1	.02
Figure 55: CV result of CNTs1	.02
Figure 56: CV result of NiO-CNTs1	.03
Figure 57: Cathodic and anodic reaction on CV curve1	.04
Figure 58: Comparison of IV measurement of NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs based	
DSSC1	.06

List of Tables

Table 1: Comparison between semiconductor solar cell and Dye sensitized solar c	ell
	35
Table 2:Solution composition	82
Table 3: Percentage of elements in CNTs	89
Table 4: percentage composition of NiO	92
Table 5: EDS results of NiO-CNTs	96
Table 6: Compositional analysis of NiO-CNTs coated film	100
Table 7: comparison of properties on basis of Hall Effect	105
Table 8: Comparison of DSSC based on counter electrode from NiO, CNTs and	
NiO-CNTs	107

Chapter 1: Introduction

Energy is the most important need of human is life today. Energy is being used for industrialization, transportation, domestic and household utilization and to meet the standard lifestyle of the modern era. Energy is although improving our lifestyle and creating ease for us but on the other hand, it is also creating hazards for the environment. Since the beginning of human history, Energy is being produced by the burning of fossil fuel. Fossil fuels produce greenhouse gasses which are very dangerous for all living things on the planet. The increase in the amount of CO₂ is the result of the burning of fossil fuel to get energy from fossil fuel in a suitable form. Increase in CO₂ concentration would lead to air pollution, which would cause health problems for all living things and on plants. Gases produced in fossil fuel combustion like Sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide can cause acidic rains. Ozone layer depletion is also a result of pollution caused by energy resources. Hence the main problems of the day are depletion of fossil fuel and climate change. crude oil emits 3.15 kg Carbon per barrel of oil equivalent (Boe), natural gas emits 2.28 kg, coal emits 4 kg of carbon and for gas to liquid 2.63 kg of carbon is being emitted[1].



Figure 1: Global carbon emission from fossil fuels 1900-2014

It is clear from Figure 1, which is based on data by Environment protection agency (EPA), GHGs increased until 2005. Since 2006 there was a boom of renewable energy and strict environmental

protection laws, GHGs were controlled and since then it is decreasing so there is a decrease in the rate of greenhouse gasses. Environmental temperature is increasing by 0.13 °C per decade due to global warming. Environment temperature is expected to reach a minimum of 2 °C above pre-industrial. Global warming is not only increasing environmental temperature but also causing melting of ice due to which marine life is in high danger. The ozone layer is also depleting due to greenhouse gas effects. There is need of environment-friendly and sustainable energy resource which could sustain for centuries. There are many sources of nature which human being are using since the beginning to meet their energy demand. Sun, wind, water, and coal are types of resources which humans are using since a long ago.



Figure 2 Total U.S Greenhouse Gas emissions [2]

There is also the issue of fossil fuels depletion with the passage of time. Fossil fuels cannot be eliminated in short time but it will take decades to shift our dependency from fossil fuel to clean and widely available energy resources. According to The International Energy Agency (IEA), oil demand will reduce from 35% to 32% by 2030. Fossil fuels production has reached its peak point and this production will be reduced in future. According to the Klass, model oil will deplete in 34 years, coal in 106 years and gas in 36 years. Coal resources of the world have been downgraded from 1980 to 2005 by an overall 50%. [3].

1.1 Renewable Energy

Renewable energy is becoming burning issue worldwide due to fossil fuels depletion and global warming. The demand for renewable and clean energy is increasing day by day. Biomass, solar energy, wind, tidal and geothermal are types of renewable energy.



Figure 3: Worldwide energy consumption of year 2015 [8]

The efficiency of renewable energy was very less at the start but due to extensive research on renewable energy resources, these got developed with the passage of time. Cost of renewable energy was very high due to which it could not these were not being adopted in the 20th century, for example, wind energy cost was about 30cents/kWh in 1980 and then dropped to 5cents/kWh due to which wind energy became feasible [4]. Similar results are for solar energy. Solar energy price was very high around \$100/kWh but this has reduced to few dollars per kWh. Electricity cost produced from solar energy was around 30-40cents/kWh in 1970 which now has reduced to 3-4 cents/kWh. According to the anticipation of International Energy Agency by 2050 solar energy will occupy 25% of the energy market and similar to wind energy as well. Similarly, geothermal energy is expected to reach 17.6 GW till 2020. Biomass is also a huge source of renewable energy. Biomass to gasoline technology created the potential for biomass to replace fossil fuels. Biodiesel is being produced from biomass which is going to replace conventional diesel. The graph below shows that fossil fuels are highest consuming in the field of energy while renewable is less

consuming yet but with the passage of time consumption of renewable resources are going to increase [5].

1.1.1 Solar Energy

Solar energy is a very important type of renewable energy. Solar energy is obtained when sun light is being converted to different forms of energy depending upon the requirement. Light from sun consists of multiple wavelengths and depending on wavelength. Solar spectrum consists of Infrared region (700nm-1mm), visible region (380-780nm) and Ultraviolet region (UV) (100-400nm) of the electromagnetic radiation. These spectrums are very important to get maximum output from a solar cell. A solar cell is considered better which could utilize a maximum of the solar spectrum. Solar energy can be supposed to be the most abundant energy source as the sun will keep on shining for billions of years. According to International Energy Agency (IEA), solar energy can produce up to 885 million terawatt-hours (TWh) in a year that is 6200 times of the energy being consumed worldwide in 2008 and 4200 times the energy consumption expected in 2035. There are further three types of solar energy, Photovoltaic solar power, solar thermal energy and concentrated solar power. Solar energy is used to produce different forms of energy. The output of Solar photovoltaic (PV) is electrical energy while the output of solar thermal energy is steam which can further be used for heating or power generation. The output of concentrated solar power is electrical power and stream depending on the type of power plant. Among these, all types of solar energy, Solar PV is type on which major research is being focused due to which efficiency of PV is increasing with time and price of PV systems is decreasing day by day[6].

1.1.2 Worldwide renewable energy

Renewable energy is gaining importance in the world with the passage of time. Cost of the renewable is reducing while technology is improving with the passage of time.



Figure 4: PV installed worldwide

The graph in Figure 4 shows that photovoltaic energy installation is increasing worldwide at a high rate. Increase in energy resources in the year 2015-2016 was even more than 30%. In China installation of PV increased by 34% and the USA increased PV capacity by 15%. Solar water heating capacity has reached to 450 GWs. Wind energy installed capacity has reached up to 480 GW. China invested around 40 billion US dollars on PV in the year 2015 alone. United nation framework for conventional climate change (UNFCC) is an organization which works with clean energy resources. UNFCC benefit the countries by giving financial assistance in the field of renewable energy[4][7].

1.1.3 Renewable energy in Pakistan

Pakistan also adopted renewable energy likewise other countries. Pakistan has installed power capacity of 17000MW while peak demand is around 22000MW [8]. Therefore, energy demand is increasing at a rate of 10% annually. Energy requirement would reach up to 45000 MW till 2030[9].



Figure 5: Power sector in Pakistan [8]

The Figure above shows the share of energy resources in power sector of Pakistan. It clearly shows that Pakistan is mostly dependent on oil and gas resources to meet its energy demand. The share of other energy resources especially renewables are negligible. Due to high consumption of oil and gas, Pakistan is facing the problem of pollution and a higher concentration of greenhouse gases in the environment[10][11].

Pakistan has a high potential for renewable energy as shown in Figure 6. Potential of photovoltaic solar energy is very high. Cost of photovoltaic solar panels was very high till 2010 but now it is reducing due to Government friendly policies towards renewable energy resources. Pakistan is located in a region where solar insulation is very high. Average sun hours per day is around 7 hours/day during summer which is very high value. Pakistan has set a target of getting 10,000MW of electricity through renewable energy till 2030 [12][13][14].



Figure 6: The estimated renewable energy potential [13]

Solar Photovoltaic potential is very high and it is around 118GW. Potential of wind is also reasonable and a few plants are being installed at coastal areas of Sindh. Biomass is also available throughout the country so wise use of biomass could help energy production in remote areas. MSW could also be used for energy production and it also has advantage that waste is properly disposed of due to which it causes reduction of environmental pollution [15]. The Pakistan Council for Renewable Energy Technologies (PCRET) was established in 2001 and objective of it was to research and develop the field of renewable energy in Pakistan. The main aim of PCRET is to develop clean and environmentally friendly energy resources and make its local fabrication feasible. Similarly, another department named as The Alternative Energy Development Board (AEDB) was established in 2003 by the Government of Pakistan and this act as the central national body related to renewable energy. The main objective of AEDB is to achieve the 10% share of the renewable technologies in the energy mix of the country [13].



Figure 7: Advantages of renewable energy in Pakistan

The national renewable energy potential is about 167GW so there is need of proper planning to get benefit from these resources.

1.2 Fundamental working of Photovoltaic (PV)

Fusion reactions are taking place in the core of the sun. Energy produced on the sun is equivalent to 38,460 septillion watts $(3.846 \times 10^{26} \text{ W})$ per second and temperature at the core of the sun is 15.7 million kelvins. Energy available at the surface of the atmosphere (at air mass 0) is 1367 W/m² while on the surface of the earth (at air mass 1.5) is 1000 W/m². Water vapors, ozone, and dust absorb about 23% of the solar radiation. 71% of the solar radiations are being absorbed in the atmosphere and surface of the earth. This reduction of solar energy is due to reflection and scattering from CH₄, CO₂, O₃, NOx and dust particles. Absorption would be increased with the increase of path length. Light is being absorbed in PV solar cell as a result of which electron is being produced. Sunlight consists of photons. The energy of photon depends on the wavelength of the light. In the atmosphere, sun light is being absorbed like a black body. Absorption varies with wavelength and air mass.

A solar cell consists of two electrodes called anode and cathode. In typical silicon-based solar cell, PN junction plays a key role in the production of electrical energy. Silicon is n-type doped means

silicon is doped with a pentavalent atom like phosphorus due to which an excessive electron is being obtained. Due to the excessive electron, n-type atom is considered as a negative charge. Ptype atoms are being obtained by doping silicon with trivalent atoms like boron due to which a

vacancy is being produced. This vacancy is called hole and due to this doping p-type atoms are considered as a positively charged atom.



Figure 8: Structure of a typical solar cell

Above structure is a typical structure of a solar cell. Light fall on the solar cell. An anti-reflective coating is being deposited on the solar cell so that maximum light could be absorbed in the solar cell. Maximum light could be trapped which means output could be maximized. The base layer and top layer are basic solar cell with electrodes are on both ends. One electrode is called anode while other is called cathode. These contacts are ohmic contacts.

In a solar cell, there are basically four steps required for photovoltaic energy conservation

- 1. Light is being absorbed in semiconductor which gets excited from ground to excited state.
- 2. Atom in the excited state is converted into negative and positive charge.
- 3. Positive and negative charges move to respective electrodes. Negative charges move towards the cathode and positive charge towards the anode.
- 4. These charges move to an external circuit and then get combined by completing the circuit. Electric current will be produced and the excited atom will move to the ground state.

A photon which falls on the surface of the solar cell has a specific energy. The energy of the photon depends on the wavelength of the light. Energy is inversely proportional to wavelength.

$$E = \frac{hc}{\Lambda}$$

where

h is planks constant

c is speed of light

 Λ is wavelength of light.

We want solar photovoltaic cell which could trap maximum wavelength range of light.

The maximum power output of the solar cell depends on the maximum output voltage, short circuit current and fill factor of the solar cell. Fill factor is ideality factor of the solar cell.



Figure 9: Current-voltage curve of a solar cell

Voc is open circuit voltage of the solar cell which is the maximum output of a solar cell.

Jsc is short circuit current which is the maximum output of the solar cell.

Electric output Power is the product of voltage and current.

It depends on the product of current and voltage at every point on the graph. Power reached at a maximum point and voltage at that point is called Vmax and current at that point is called Jmax. Vmax and Jmax are not maximum values of the voltages and currents but these are the values at which maximum power is being attained from the solar cell. Pmax is maximum output power which we can attain from solar cell.

$Pmax = Vmax \times Jmax$

Pmax is being calculated through maximum power point tracking (MPPT). MPPT works on an algorithm in which at every point on graph power is being calculated by multiplying voltage and current on that point of IV curve. Power at next point is being calculated and then being compared with previous value and the maximum value is being tracked. Fill factor is the ratio of maximum attainable power to the product of Voc and Jsc.

$$FF = V_{max} \times J_{max}$$
$$J_{sc} \times V_{oc}$$

Value of fill factor varies between 0 and 1. The best solar cell is one with maximum fill factor. Generally, fill factor varies between 0.4 and 0.75.

$$\eta = V_{\max} \times J_{\max} \times FF$$

$$P_{in}$$

The ideal maximum power is the product of Isc and Voc

Pin is 1 kW/m^2 or 100 mW/cm^2 which is solar irradiance on the surface of the solar cell. This is sun light instensity per unit area. Here area is active area on which sun light is falling.

The efficiency of the solar cell depends on ratio of the maximum power which is being drawn from solar cell to the power of the photon or light on the surface of the solar cell. The efficiency of the solar cell varies depending on the type of solar cell, the structure of the electrodes, aging factor and changes of the cell efficiency with time. Solar cell efficiency also varies with a change in temperature because high-temperature effect movement of electron thus reducing the efficiency of the solar cell. High temperature also deteriorates the aging factor of the cell and make a solar cell and its packing unstable.

1.3 Generations of solar cells

Three generations of photovoltaic solar cells have been commercialized while the fourth generation solar cell is still in research phase. Fourth generation solar cell are a polymeric solar cell.

1.3.1 First Generations solar cells

First generation solar cells are normally silicon based solar cells. Crystalline Silicon based solar cells normally have 15%-20% efficiency. These are very stable solar cells but technologies used for fabrication of first generation solar cells are very energy intensive so these was need of less energy intensive technologies for fabrication of solar cells. Secondly, cost of first generation solar cells is very high because highly purified silicon is very rare and costly. These reason urged the need of new types of solar cells.

1.3.2 Second Generations solar cells

Second generation solar cells are amorphous silicon and thin film silicon based solar cells. Efficiency of second-generation silicon solar cells are around 10%. These solar cells are easy to fabricate as compared to first generation solar cells.

1.3.3 Third Generations solar cells

Third generation solar cells are very important types of solar cells. These are thin film solar cell technology. These are CIGS, CdTe based solar cells. These also include photochemical solar cells and organic polymers based solar cells. Efficiency of these types of solar cells is up to 15%. These solar cells are very easy to fabricate and materials of these solar cells are in abundant. Multi junction solar cells are also third generation solar cells and these are most efficient solar cells. In third generation solar cells energy band gap can be engineered by changing the materials and varying the technology so large wavelength of light can be used effectively in third generation solar cells.

Multi-junction solar cells are important type of third generation solar cells. Multi-junction solar cells has highest efficiency solar cells and currently used in satellites. These are very costly but with improvement in technology, its cost will reduce. A triple junction solar cell is InGaP/GaAs/Ge. Efficiency of multi junction solar cells is high because large wavelength band is absorbed especially low wavelength. Energy is high in low wavelength because wavelength and energy is inversely proportional to wavelength. Thermal losses are less in multi junction solar cells. Two methods are used for combining multi junction solar cells. One method is physically

separate them and connected through metal contacts while second method is through tunnel junction.[16][17]



Figure 10: Multi junction solar cells [16]

Multi junction solar cell structure is shown in Figure above. This shows the band gap of different materials. Antireflection coating is on the top the top to maximize the light absorption.

Hybrid polymer solar cells are also types of third generation solar cells. Hybrid polymer solar cell consists of photoactive layers of two distinct chemical composition. One component is inorganic nanoparticle (NP) while other is organic semiconducting polymer.

The structure of hybrid solar cells is shown in Figure above. This is hybrid solar cell based on silicon nanowire and P_3HT . Composition of Silicon nanowires and the solvent used for the film fabrication are very important for study of hybrid solar cells. Concentration of SiNWs is around 15%. The power conversion efficiency of these types of solar cells is around 0.10%.

Quantum dot solar cells are another important type of solar cells. In Q dot solar cell, light fall on transparent conducting electrode and it separate the electron hole pair. Q dot solar cells are high efficiency solar cells. Researchers are trying to improve the efficiency of solar cells and ultimate goal of efficiency is more than 60%. These are low cost solar cells and these can be fabricated by using low cost chemical processes like screen printing.



Figure 11: Working principle of Q dot solar cell [15]

Light fall on the transparent electrode of QDSC onto a photosensitive layer of dots leads to the formation of electron-hole pairs (e^{-}/h^{+}). One falling the photon or light, the charged particles

isolated and move to corresponding electrodes, thus producing electric current. Four-armed quantum dots solar cells are specific type of Q dot solar cells. In these solar cells, the specific shape of these crystals reduce the electron-hole pair recombination. Currently roll-to-roll printing technique and some other manufacturing techniques are being used for fabrication of Q dots solar cells [18] [19].

Perovskite solar cells are also another type of 3^{rd} generation solar cells. The highest efficiency of Perovskite solar cells is 22.1%.



Figure 12: Working principle of Perovskite solar cells [17]

Perovskite solar cells use compounds with the perovskite crystal structure and structure of these solar cell is to absorb light. $(CH_3NH_3)PbI_3$ is the highly studied material of Perovskite solar cells. The efficient movement of positive and negative generated by photoexcitation in Perovskite solar cells reach their respective electrodes so efficiently. In perovskite solar cell, light passing through the transparent electrode onto a layer of a photosensitive perovskite material and this stimulates excitations thus electron-hole pairs (e⁻/h⁺) are generated. The charged particles are separated and diffused through the charge-conducting layers to respective positive and negative electrodes, as a result of which electricity is generated. Perovskite solar cells will be available for commercialization till 2021 and role of academic research will continue to play. The main

challenge in commercialization of perovskite solar cell is its stability. The light-sensitive material in this solar cell dissolves in the presence of water and unstable at high temperature.

Dye sensitized solar cells are third generation solar cells. DSSCs were invented by Professor Michael Gräetzel and Dr. Brian O'Regan in 1991. DSSCs can be used indoor as well as outdoor to produce electricity. DSSCs use both natural and artificial light to produce electricity. Due to these qualities, DSSCs are being used for building-integrated photovoltaic (BIPV) applications. These also absorb wider range wavelength of sunlight as compared to silicon-based solar cells. Although the efficiency of DSSCs is less as compared to Silicon-based solar cell but with passage to time as research is going on DSSC, its efficiency is increasing due to discoveries in this field. The Dye sensitized solar cell is preferred over PN junction solar cell due to technological and economic advantages. The efficiency of DSSC was very low at the beginning but now it has reached up to 13% due to improvement in materials and deposition technique.



Figure 13: Working principle of DSSCs [18]

In silicon based solar cells and other conventional solar cells, light absorption, electronic excitation, and charge separation occur in a single layer of silicon but in DSSCs the events occur in separate molecular layers. DSSCs consists of a photoanode of titanium dioxide nanoparticles

that are coated with light-harvesting dye molecules and liquid electrolyte is used. The charges are separated at the surface of the nanoparticles and electrons are injected into the TiO_2 layer and transported through TiO_2 layer to photoanode. The positive charges move though electrolyte to the opposite side of the cell. The detailed working of the DSSCs is being discussed in next chapter.

Chapter summary

Cheap and clean energy source is the most important need of humanity in modern era because energy production sources are polluting the environment. Renewable energy is best solution to tackle issue of the high energy production cost, depletion of fossil fuels and environmental pollution, energy production from renewable energy sources is increasing globally day by day. Solar energy is a cheap and most abundant form of renewable energy. Cost of solar energy is reducing day by day due to improvement in efficiency of solar cells. In solar energy, light falling on the surface of the solar cell excite the atoms of the solar cell and electron is emitted when this atom comes back to ground state. Electron hole pairs are generated as a result of sun light. Efficiency of solar cell depends upon open circuit voltage, short circuit current and fill factor.

There are multiple types of solar cell like silicon solar cell, hybrid solar cell, Q dot solar cells, perovskite solar cells, multilayer solar cell and dye sensitized solar cells. Dye sensitized solar cell is major focus in this research work. It is organic solar cell consists of photo anode, counter electrode and an electrolyte.

Reference

- "Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions Data | Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions | US EPA."
 [Online]. Available: https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/global-greenhouse-gas-emissionsdata. [Accessed: 05-Feb-2017].
- "Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions Data | Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions | US EPA."
 [Online]. Available: https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/global-greenhouse-gas-emissionsdata. [Accessed: 05-Feb-2017].
- [3] S. Shafiee and E. T. Ã, "When will fossil fuel reserves be diminished ?," vol. 37, pp. 181–189, 2009.
- [4] R. Pelc and R. M. Fujita, "Renewable energy from the ocean," vol. 26, no. July, pp. 471–479, 2002.
- [5] S. Siddique and R. Wazir, "A review of the wind power developments in Pakistan," Renew. Sustain. Energy Rev., vol. 57, pp. 351–361, 2016.
- [6] A. S. P. Limited, "Solar Radiation Map-Pakistan," 2015, islamabad, 2015.
- P. Moriarty and D. Honnery, "What is the global potential for renewable energy ?," Renew. Sustain. Energy Rev., vol. 16, no. 1, pp. 244–252, 2012.
- [8] M. M. Ra, S. Rehman, and S. Asia, "National energy scenario of Pakistan Current status , future alternatives, and institutional infrastructure : An overview," vol. 69, no. October 2015, pp. 156–167, 2017.
- [9] I. Renewable and E. Agency, RENEWABLE ENERGY STATISTICS 2017 STATISTIQUES D ' ÉNERGIE RENOUVELABLE 2017 ESTADÍSTICAS DE ENERGÍA. 2017.
- [10] T. Rashid and M. H. Sahir, "Modeling and Analysis of Long Term Energy Demands in Residential Sector of Pakistan," vol. 20, no. Iii, pp. 11–24, 2015.

- [11] A. B. Awan and Z. A. Khan, "Recent progress in renewable energy Remedy of energy crisis in Pakistan," Renew. Sustain. Energy Rev., vol. 33, pp. 236–253, 2014.
- W. B. Group, "https://energydata.info/dataset/pakistan-solar-measurement-wbg-esmap,"
 World Bank, june 2017. [Online].[Accessed 12 March 2018].
- [13] M. Wakeel, B. Chen, and S. Jahangir, "Overview of energy portfolio in Pakistan," Energy Procedia, vol. 88, pp. 71–75, 2016.
- [14] F. Mahmood, M. Kamal, and A. Baig, "Pakistan Energy Vision 2035," 2014.
- [15] C. W. Tang, "Two-layer organic photovoltaic cell," vol. 183, no. 1986, pp. 5–8, 2004.
- [16] J. T. Wang, J. M. Ball, E. M. Barea, A. Abate, J. A. Alexander-webber, J. Huang, M. Saliba, J. Bisquert, H. J. Snaith, and R. J. Nicholas, "Low-Temperature Processed Electron Collection Layers of Graphene/ TiO 2 Nanocomposites in Thin Film Perovskite Solar Cells," 2014.
- [17] G. F. Brown and J. Wu, "Third generation photovoltaics," vol. 405, no. 4, pp. 394–405, 2009.
- [18] M. Sensitizers, A. Mishra, M. K. R. Fischer, and P. Bäuerle, "Metal-Free Organic Dyes for Dye-Sensitized Solar Cells : From Structure : Property Relationships to Design Rules Angewandte," pp. 2474–2499, 2009.
- [19] I. D. Kim, J. M. Hong, B. H. Lee, D. Y. Kim, E. K. Jeon, D. K. Choi, and D. J. Yang,
 "Dye-sensitized solar cells using network structure of electrospun ZnO nanofiber mats,"
 Appl. Phys. Lett., vol. 91, no. 16, p. 163109, 2007.

Chapter 2: Literature review

Dye sensitized solar cells are gaining high importance with improvement in efficiency and with new innovative materials. In this chapter, importance of DSSC and its detailed working is being discussed. In my research, I have selected the suitable material which can act better as counter electrode for DSSCs. Carbon nano-materials are preferred materials for counter electrode of dye sensitized solar cells. Metal oxide composite is prepared with CNTs to improve the conductivity of the counter electrode for DSSCs. NiO nano-materials are prepared by catalytic chemical vapor deposition process. Similarly CNTs are purified by using chemical vapor deposition process. NiO-CNTs composite is prepared by using co-precipitation method. SEM analysis is performed on all three samples. Similarly XRD analysis is also performed for all three samples. Results are also discussed in detail. Solution of these materials are prepared and coated on ITO coated PET using spin coating techniques. Coated samples are characterized using Hall Effect equipment technique and cyclic voltammetry analysis. Complete DSSC is fabricated using microfluidic analysis technique. Efficiency of all these solar cells are obtained using IV profiling technique. Comparison of Voc, Isc, FF and efficiency is being made between all three DSSC.

2.1 Dye sensitized solar cells

Dye sensitized solar cells are third generation solar cells. DSSCs were invented by Professor Michael Gräetzel and Dr. Brian O'Regan in 1991. DSSCs can be used indoor as well as outdoor to produce electricity. DSSCs use both natural and artificial light to produce electricity. Due to these qualities, DSSCs are being used for building-integrated photovoltaic (BIPV) applications. These also absorb wider range wavelength of sunlight as compared to silicon-based solar cells. Although the efficiency of DSSCs is less as compared to Silicon-based solar cell but with passage of time as research is going on DSSC, its efficiency is increasing due to discoveries in this field. The Dye sensitized solar cell is preferred over PN junction solar cell due to technological and economic advantages. The efficiency of DSSCs was very low at the beginning but now it has reached up to 14% due to improvement in employed materials and the deposition techniques [1]. The Figure 14 shows the number of research papers published each year in journals [2].



Figure 14: Number of Research papers in each year

A comparison has been made for a few factors between semiconductor based solar cell and dye sensitized solar cell and reported in the table 1.

Table	1: Comparison	h between	semiconductor	based solar	cell and	Dye sensitized	solar cell
-------	---------------	-----------	---------------	-------------	----------	----------------	------------

	Semiconductor based solar	Dye sensitized solar cell
Comparison Factor	cell	
Power generation cost	High cost	Low cost
Transparency	Opaque	Transparent
Material's behavior towards	Normal	Highly friendly
Environment		
Power generation efficiency	Better	Normal
Color	Few	Multiple


Figure 15: Structure of DSSC

2.2 Structure of Dye sensitized solar cell

DSSC is being called so because in this cell an organic material (dye) is being sensitized and this is a basic principle of the solar cell. The dye in dye sensitized solar cell replaces light absorbing pigments (chlorophylls), similarly, nanostructured semiconductor layer replaces oxidized

NADPH and carbon dioxide acts as the electron acceptor. The electrolyte in DSSC acts as the water in leaf while oxygen as the electron donor and oxidation product.

DSSC consists of main four parts

- I. Photo Anode
- II. Dye
- III. Electrolyte
- IV. Counter electrode

2.2.1 Photo Anode

Photo anode consists of a transparent conducting oxide (TCO) glass with a resistivity of few ohms. Normally one side of the glass is coated with a layer of fluorine-doped tin dioxide (FTO) or indium-doped tin oxide. Semiconductor nanoscale material is being coated on this conducting side of the glass. Photo anode should be designed to have a larger surface area so that maximum light could be trapped. Light absorption is dependent on the surface area of the photo anode. Nano structures are being prepared to maximize the surface area and light trapped. Initially, TiO₂ was being used as semiconductor nanomaterial but now SnO₂ and ZnO are also being used as semiconductor nanomaterial.

2.2.1.1 TiO₂ Photo anode

Titanium oxide is photo catalyst material and it has the features of high conductivity, low cost, found abundant in nature and environment-friendly due to non-toxic behavior. It also has an advantage that it can absorb wider band gap of ultraviolet light. The transition of few metal ions (Fe, Fe, Cr, Co, Mn, V, Mo) with TiO₂ engineered the band gap of TiO₂. Transition of these metals reduces the energy band gap thus the number of photons being absorbed is increased. A few non-metal ions (B, C, N, S, F) are also being doped with TiO₂ to enhance its photo catalytic activity. Similarly, Sulphur is also being doped with TiO₂ to capture the maximum spectrum of light. Hydrothermal, sol gel and solvothermal process are being used for doping of ions with TiO₂. The ultimate purpose of this doping is to utilize the light below visible region. This spectrum of light has high energy so by capturing this useful portion of the light spectrum could enhance the efficiency of DSSCs [3].

2.2.1. 2 ZnO photo anode

ZnO nano material is also being used as photo anode for dye sensitized solar cells. This material has higher surface area and thus it can absorb a large amount of light. Nano rods structures are being made through ZnO thus these nano rods cause an increase in surface area due to which efficiency is increased. The efficiency of DSSC depends on the size of the nano rods of ZnO [4]. ZnO is also being deposited on transparent conducting oxide glass as nano flowers by using

hydrothermal process. The efficiency of DSSC based on ZnO nano flowers is around 1.9% while the efficiency of ZnO nano rods is around 1% thus nano flowers have higher efficiency then ZnO nano rods [5]. Sol-modified ZnO is also being used as photo anode for dye sensitized solar cell. Sol-modified ZnO photo anode shows 39% higher efficiency un modified ZnO photo anode for dye sensitized solar cell. Due to sol-modification process crystalline diameter increased from 15.1nm to 18nm. Short circuit current also increased by 46% [6]. ZnO nanowire is also being used as photo anode for dye sensitized solar cells. ZnO nanowires are grown on FTO coated glass using chemical bath method.

2.2.2. Dye:

Dye could be made from organic or inorganic chemicals. Dye should have wide range absorption, high absorption coefficient, high anchoring property, high stability and optimum redox potential. Dye is being used to absorb light. Ruthenium dye was being used initially but now several dyes are being used including an organic and inorganic dye. Dye is being absorbed on photo anode [7]. There are mainly two types of dyes synthetic dyes and organic dyes. Organic dyes are easy to fabricate from natural resources while synthetic dyes are fabricated by the complex fabrication process. There are multiple factors on basis of which we analyze dye and their role in dye sensitized solar cells [8]. Synthetic dues are higher in cost as compared to the cost of organic natural dyes due to the higher cost of material involved in reactions during fabrication of synthetic dyes. Organic dyes are better on basis of environmental benefits as compared to synthetic dyes. Stability of organic dye is much better as compared to the stability of synthetic dye. The absorption spectrum of synthetic dye is higher as compared to organic dye. The absorption spectrum of synthetic dye is up to 800 nm while absorption spectrum of the organic dye is 400 nm-700 nm. The efficiency of synthetic dye is much higher than an organic dye. Organic dyes are easily available while synthetic dyes are hard to manufacture. Similarly, organic dyes can be manufactured easily but synthetic dyes require a variety of solvents and also time-consuming so now focus is to improve the efficiency of organic dye [9]. There are few commonly used dyes for example, ruthenium (Ru) bipyridyl derivatives (N3: cis-diisothiocyanato-bis (2,20-bipyridyl-4,40dicarboxylic acid) ruthenium(II), N719: di-tetrabutylammonium cis bis(isothiocyanato)bis(2, 20bipyridyl-4,40-dicarboxylato) ruthenium(II); Z907: cis-bis (isothiocyanato)(2,20-bipyridyl-4,40dicarboxylato)(4,40-di-nonyl-20- bipyridyl) ruthenium(II)) [2]. Dye is absorbed on surface photo

anode. Photo anode is dipped in a solution of the dye. Dye is absorbed in ethanol and in this solution, TiO_2 coated FTO glass is dipped in a beaker [10]. Photo anode which is an electrode consists of TiO_2 coated FTO glass and adsorbed dye. The thickness of the dye is around micrometer. There are main three main factors on which nature of dye depending on, for example, polarity and types of substituents due to which dye interacts with TiO_2 layer. PH of the dye is also important and it also affects the overall efficiency of solar cell.

2.2.3 Electrolyte

The electrolyte is a pathway for an electron from the counter electrode to photo anode. It should have made from stable redox material. It should have optimum redox potential, high stability, good solvent and high interaction with dye. Initially, the liquid electrolyte was being used but now gel and solid hole conducting electrolyte are being prepared. Electrolytes are organic as well inorganic solvents. The efficiency of DSSCs based on organic solvents liquid electrolytes such as acetonitrile (AN) have efficiency around 11% [11]. There are few problems with a liquid electrolyte that liquid electrolytes are volatile and these can get a leak from dye sensitized solar cells so there is need of nonvolatile electrolytes. The viscosity of electrolyte is also very important because diffusion of redox couple (Γ/I^3) is dependent on the viscosity of electrolyte [12]. The organic hole transporting material, inorganic semiconductor material, and polymer electrolytes are a better replacement of liquid electrolytes to tackle above described issue [13].

There are few important materials like ethylmethylimidazolium-based ionic liquids (ILs) are a better replacement of conventional electrolytes but these materials are expensive and toxic so these can increase the cost of dye sensitized solar cells [14]. There is an innovative electrolyte which is quaternary ammonium salt-derivative ionic liquid called G.CI. This is a mixture of glycerol and choline iodide to form electrolyte for DSSCs. The efficiency of G.CI electrolyte based dye sensitized solar cells is around 3.1% [12]. These are preferred because these are easy to prepare [11] [14]. The polyhedral oligomeric silsesquioxane (POSS) is also used as an electrolyte for DSSCs and this is solid state electrolyte. The POSS grafted with the methyl-substituted imidazolium show the maximum efficiency of 6.52%. The temperature of the electrolyte was previously 5-6°C but now in latest research temperature is being dropped to -8.8°C due to which maximum conductivity is achieved. The conductivity of POSS electrolyte is very important as its conductivity directly affect the efficiency of DSSCs [15].

2.2.4. Counter Electrode

Counter electrode can be made from metal and non-metal. The counter electrode should have a high surface area, high stability, and high catalytic activity. Traditionally counter electrode is being prepared with platinum. Platinum is being used due to its high conductivity. There is still an issue that platinum is not stable with electrolyte so there is a need for stable and low-cost material. There are multiple materials which can be used as a counter electrode for dye sensitized solar cell.

2.2.4.1 Platinum as a counter electrode

Platinum is highly conductive rare earth metal. It is being preferred as a counter electrode due to its high catalytic activity towards I₃⁻ and low charge transfer resistance. The thickness of platinum on the conductive glass is also very important and it should be around 0.2-2 micron. There are multiple deposition techniques like electrochemical deposition and thermal vapor deposition. Transparent platinum is stable and this is used as a counter electrode due to the high surface area and high catalytic activity. The transparent platinum thin film is also being used for back-side illumination. Platinum nano particles counter electrode has much better performance than bulk platinum counter electrode based solar cell [16]. Platinum composites are also being used as a counter electrode for DSSC. Graphene- platinum counter electrode for DSSC.

2.2.4.2 PEDOT: PSS counter electrode

PEDOT: PSS has got much reputation during this decade. PEDOT: PSS is highly conductive material. PEDOT: PSS liquid is being added to organic solvents like dimethyl sulfoxide, N, N-dimethyl acetamide (DMAc), DMF and dichloromethane (DMC). To further increase the roughness and conductivity of the PEDOT: PSS, carbon black or CNTs is added. Dip coating and spin coating techniques are used to deposit polymer on FTO glass. DMSO-PEDOT: PSS (C: 2.0 wt.%) shows maximum conductivity and conductivity of this sample is 350 S/cm [17]. The efficiency of DMSO-PEDOT: PSS (C: 0.1 wt.%) is 5.81% and this efficiency is comparable to the efficiency of platinum (5.61%) based counter electrode for DSSC. The thickness of the PEDOT: PSS is in micrometers. The number of polymerization cycles is being used to control the thickness

of the PEDOT: PSS. The efficiency of DSSC varies with the thickness of the polymer. Polyvinyl propylene and graphene powder are also being added to PEDOT: PSS. PVP and graphene powder increase binding of carbon/PEDOT: PSS thus this increased conductivity of counter electrode and increase the efficiency of solar cell. This solution is being deposited through scratch method and thickness of solution is 3-4 micrometer.

2.2.4.3 Carbon nano materials based counter electrode

Carbon nano materials have got much attraction due to high strength, high electrical conductivity, low cost and high catalytic activity towards triiodide ion. There are multiple forms of carbon nano materials like carbon black (CB), carbon nanotubes, single-walled carbon nanotubes, multiple walled carbon nanotubes carbon nano fibers and NiO-CNTs.

Carbon black is formed by incomplete combustion of organic petroleum product. Active sites are available at the crystal edge of the carbon black. The thickness of carbon black layer is very important and fill factor of solar cell increase with a thickness of the counter electrode. Charge transfer resistance also reduces with an increase of the thickness of the counter electrode [18].

Carbon nano fibers (CNFs) have a diameter of 10-80 nm and it plays an important role as a counter electrode for DSSC. Carbon nanofibers are being synthesized by catalytic decomposition process. Carbon nanofibers are also being prepared by electrospinning of polyacrylonitrile (PAN) which has high conductivity. Similarly, poly vinyl propylene is also used for carbon nanofibers. Nanofibers are being prepared through pyrolysis. Pyrolysis is carried out at 900°C in nitrogenous environment. The carbonized carbon nanofibers are also being prepared by carbonization process. Electrospinning technique is used for deposition of PAN and PVP. Carbon nanofibers are prepared in electrospinning process through strict control on feed rate, the voltage applied, distance from charged plate and viscosity of the fluid. After deposition electrode is dried at a different temperature varying from 400°C to 750°C. CNFs dried at 550°C show lowest fill factor but highest efficiency of DSSC is highest for 50-micrometer thickness [19]. There is also a type of carbon nanofibers called vertically aligned carbon nanofibers (VACNFs). VACNFs structure is highly conductive structure and this is needle-like structure and core-shell structure. The diameter of VACNFs is controlled to be 50nm-100nm. VACNFs show efficiency of 1.5% [20].

Polyvinyl alcohol is a water-soluble polymer. Polyvinyl alcohol has a melting point of 180°C-190°C. This has a degree of hydrolysis of 86.5%-89%.PVA is non-toxic so it can be used without hazardous fear. Concentration range of PVA is 1000-20,000 mg/l. Polyvinyl alcohol is also used for dispersion of carbon nanotubes. Single-walled nanotubes macro films are used as a counter electrode for DSSCs. CuNi NPs are deposited through electrospinning technique and then calcination. PVA is used for decomposition of carbon nanomaterials and metallic acetate. These nanofibers are used as a counter electrode for DSSCs [21] [22]. Polyvinyl alcohol is preferred due to low cost and better conductive properties [22]. PVA is also used to disperse MWCNT and the main advantage is that it evaporate at room temperature [23]. PVA-MWCNTs are also used for cholesterol level detection through injection of microfluid. 1wt% PVA is used for dispersion of CNT-COOH. Thin films are being deposited on conductive glass [24].

Polyvinyl pyrrolidone is used as a polymer for dispersion of carbon nanotube for fabrication of counter electrode for dye sensitized solar cell [25]. PVP is soluble in water and also in polar solvents but this is not soluble in esters, ethers, ketones and hydrocarbons [26]. This polymer is non-toxic and this form highly conductive film when deposited on a substrate. In this experiment, Polyvinyl pyrrolidone is dispersed in DMSO and then this solution is mixed with CNTs dispersed in DMSO. Polyvinyl pyrrolidone with the average molecular weight of 40,000 manufactured by Sigma Aldrich is used in the experiment.

Multiwalled carbon nanotubes and single-walled carbon nanotube are also important forms of carbon nanomaterials which are being widely used for a counter electrode for dye sensitized solar cells. SWCNTs and MWCNTs are highly conductive materials and also highly stable towards redox reaction. SWCNTs and MWCNTs have high mobility, high conductivity, mechanical strength and optical strength. These can be dissolved in organic solvents easily and thin films of this material can be formed easily as well [27]. SWCNTs have a diameter in the range of few nanometers while the diameter of MWCNTs is tens of nanometers. Best efficiency is being achieved of SWCNTs (3 wt.%) is around 1.3% and fill factor of .55 [27]. Reduced graphene oxide (rGO) is also being added to single-walled carbon nanotubes.

2.2.4.4 Metal oxide as counter electrode

Pseudo capacitance has been studied of many metal oxides. NiO has a special importance among these metal oxides due to its easy availability, environmentally friendly, low cost, and high pseudo

capacitive behavior [28] [29]. NiO-CNTs are important due to better pseudo capacitive properties containing faradaic redox reactions, which occur within the active electrode materials. NiO-CNTs are Nano materials and have large surface area. Electronic conductivity of NiO-CNTs is much better as compared to NiO and CNTs alone. Functionalization of CNTs with negatively charged PSS can large number of electroactive sites that can bind ions with positive charge oriented growth of metal oxide along the CNTs.

2.2.3 Working principle of dye sensitized solar cell

Dye sensitized solar cells work on same principle as photosynthesis of plant. In DSSCs product is electrical energy instead of glucose. Working principle of DSSC is shown in diagram below.



Figure 16: Working diagram of Dye sensitized solar cell [30]

The basic working principle of DSSC consists of the following steps.

When Light falls on the DSSC, photon absorbs in dye, it excites the electron. An electron moves from HOMO (highest occupied molecular orbital) to LUMO (Lowest unoccupied molecular orbitals) by obtaining the energy of the photon (hv).

S + Photon (hv) \longrightarrow S* Excitation process-----(1)

Photon is absorbed in dye and it excites the dye. The dye absorbs all photons of the energy of energy difference between HOMO to LUMO. An electron from grounded state get excited to excited state this is called photo excitation. An electron in LUMO is not stable as LUMO is an unstable state.

 $S^* + TiO_2 \longrightarrow e^-$ (enter in TiO_2) + S^+ Injection Process-----(2)

From LUMO excited electron is injected into TiO2. Fermi level of the TiO2 should be less than LUMO of Dye.

 e^{-} (TiO2) + C.E \longrightarrow TiO₂ + e^{-} (at C.E) + electrical energy ------Energy generation-----(3)

Then electron injected to TiO_2 and move to counter electrode. Here holes are being blocked the only electron are injected to TiO_2 layer. Injection time is about 10^{-15} -- 10^{-12} sec.

S⁺ + 3/2 * I \rightarrow S + 1/2 * I₃ - Regeneration of Dye-----(4)

Electrolyte oxidizes the Dye. Electrolyte consist of Iodide ion. Dye react with I^- and Dye is regenerated.

 $1/2 * I^{3-} + e^{-}(C.E) \longrightarrow 3/2 * I^{-} + C.E - e^{-}$ recapture reaction-----(5)

At counter electrode, electron reacts with tri-iodide ion due to which iodide ion is regenerated which is reused in the regeneration of Dye. This is a complete cycle of electricity generation in DSSCs.

HOMO → LUMO time for excitation is 60ns

LUMO \longrightarrow CB Time for Lowest unoccupied molecular orbit to conduction band is 50 fs - 1.7 ps

CB \longrightarrow HOMO Time for de-excitation from the conduction band to highest occupied molecular orbit is ns -ms [30]

In electrolyte

 I^{3-} ____ time for oxidation in the electrolyte is 10ms

 $I^- \longrightarrow I^{3-}$ time for reduction in the electrolyte is 10ns

44

From above diagram, this is clear that dye is being regenerated and similarly electrolyte also come back to its original state [31].

Besides these reactions, at different interfaces of dye sensitized solar cell multiple recombination reactions take place and due to recombination efficiency of solar cell is being reduced. There are two main interfaces at which recombination take place.

I. At the interface between the conduction band and TiO₂.

II. In electrolyte through counter electrode and triiodide ion.

The recombination rate is slow thus solar cell working is kinetically feasible. Thus the ultimate task is to reduce recombination rate so that solar cell could be made more efficient.

Chapter summary

Dye sensitized solar cells are very important solar cells due to their low cost, better efficiency and less manufacturing equipment. DSSCs consists of photoanode, an organic dye, counter electrode and an electrolyte. ZnO nanowires are used for manufacturing of photoanode of DSSCs. Dye is used to absorb the sun light falling on the surface of the solar cell. Organic dye are getting attention due to better performance and low cost. POSS, N 3 and N 719 are dyes used in DSSCs. Dye is absorbed on Titania deposited FTO glass. Electrolyte is a pathway for electron from counter electrode to photoanode. Electrolytes are solid, liquid and gel form. Electrolytes are organic as well as inorganic. Counter electrodes are made from metal as well as nonmetals. Traditionally platinum is used for fabrication of counter electrode but platinum is rare earth metal and expensive metal so there is need of a cheap metal to fabricate the counter electrode. Carbon nanomaterials is highly conductive and to further improve the conductivity of the carbon nanomaterials, metal oxide like NiO composite is used with carbon nanomaterials. NiO-CNTs composite is a better replacement of platinum as counter electrode for DSSCs.

References

- [1] P. Balraju, M. Kumar, M. S. Roy, and G. D. Sharma, "Dye sensitized solar cells (DSSCs) based on modified iron phthalocyanine nanostructured TiO2 electrode and PEDOT:PSS counter electrode," Synth. Met., vol. 159, no. 13, pp. 1325–1331, 2009.
- [2] C. Lee, C. Li, and K. Ho, "Use of organic materials in dye-sensitized solar cells," Biochem.
 Pharmacol., vol. 20, no. 5, pp. 267–283, 2017.
- [3] W. J. Lee, E. Ramasamy, D. Y. Lee, and J. S. Song, "Efficient dye-sensitized solar cells with catalytic multiwall carbon nanotube counter electrodes," ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces, vol. 1, no. 6, pp. 1145–1149, 2009.
- [4] N. Z. Photoelectrode, "Efficient Dye-Sensitized Solar Cells Based on," pp. 1–6, 2017.
- [5] C. Y. Jiang, X. W. Sun, G. Q. Lo, D. L. Kwong, and J. X. Wang, "Improved dye-sensitized solar cells with a ZnO-nanoflower photoanode Improved dye-sensitized solar cells with a ZnO-nanoflower photoanode," vol. 263501, no. 2007, pp. 2005–2008, 2015.
- [6] L. Li, Y. Shen, G. Wu, F. Gu, M. Cao, and L. Wang, "Sol-modified ZnO photoanode for dye-sensitized solar cells," 2011.
- [7] B. E. Hardin, H. J. Snaith, and M. D. McGehee, "The renaissance of dye-sensitized solar cells," Nat. Photonics, vol. 6, no. 3, pp. 162–169, 2012.
- [8] N. A. Ludin, A. M. Al-Alwani Mahmoud, A. Bakar Mohamad, A. A. H. Kadhum, K. Sopian, and N. S. Abdul Karim, "Review on the development of natural dye photosensitizer for dye-sensitized solar cells," Renew. Sustain. Energy Rev., vol. 31, pp. 386–396, 2014.
- [9] G. Richhariya and A. Kumar, "Natural dyes for dye sensitized solar cell : A review," Renew. Sustain. Energy Rev., vol. 69, no. April 2015, pp. 705–718, 2017.
- [10] M. Wu and T. Ma, "Recent Progress of Counter Electrode Catalysts in Dye-Sensitized Solar Cells," J. Phys. Chem. C, p. 140407134318002, 2014.
- [11] M. R. Narayan, "Review: Dye sensitized solar cells based on natural photosensitizers," Renew. Sustain. Energy Rev., vol. 16, no. 1, pp. 208–215, 2012.

- [12] H. R. Jhong, D. S. H. Wong, C. C. Wan, Y. Y. Wang, and T. C. Wei, "A novel deep eutectic solvent-based ionic liquid used as electrolyte for dye-sensitized solar cells," Electrochem. commun., vol. 11, no. 1, pp. 209–211, 2009.
- [13] J. Wu, Q. Li, L. Fan, Z. Lan, P. Li, J. Lin, and S. Hao, "High-performance polypyrrole nanoparticles counter electrode for dye-sensitized solar cells," J. Power Sources, vol. 181, no. 1, pp. 172–176, 2008.
- [14] J. Wu, S. Hao, Z. Lan, J. Lin, M. Huang, and Y. Huang, "An All-Solid-State Dye-Sensitized Solar Cell-Based Poly (N -alkyl-4-vinyl-pyridine iodide) Electrolyte with Efficiency of 5 . 64 %," pp. 11568–11569, 2008.
- [15] K. Lv, W. Zhang, L. Zhang, and Z. Wang, "POSS-Based Electrolyte for E ffi cient Solid-State Dye-Sensitized Solar Cells at Sub-Zero Temperatures," 2016.
- [16] S. Thomas, T. G. Deepak, G. S. Anjusree, T. a Arun, S. V Nair, and a S. Nair, "A review on counter electrode materials in dye-sensitized solar cells.," J. Mater. Chem. A Mater. Energy Sustain., vol. 2, no. 13, pp. 4474–4490, 2014.
- [17] J. G. Chen, H. Y. Wei, and K. C. Ho, "Using modified poly(3,4-ethylene dioxythiophene): Poly(styrene sulfonate) film as a counter electrode in dye-sensitized solar cells," Sol. Energy Mater. Sol. Cells, vol. 91, no. 15–16, pp. 1472–1477, 2007.
- [18] D. B. Menzies, Q. Dai, L. Bourgeois, C. Yen, Y. Lin, and S. Liao, "Preparation and properties of a carbon nanotube-based nanocomposite photoanode for dye-sensitized solar cells."
- [19] P. Joshi, Z. Zhou, P. Poudel, A. Thapa, X.-F. Wu, and Q. Qiao, "Nickel incorporated carbon nanotube/nanofiber composites as counter electrodes for dye-sensitized solar cells.," Nanoscale, vol. 4, no. 18, pp. 5659–64, 2012.
- [20] J. W. Liu, Y. T. Kuo, K. J. Klabunde, C. Rochford, J. Wu, and J. Li, "Novel Dye-Sensitized Solar Cell Architecture Using TiO2-Coated Vertically Aligned Carbon Nanofiber Arrays," ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces, vol. 1, no. 8, pp. 1645–1649, 2009.
- [21] A. V Dudchenko, J. Rolf, K. Russell, W. Duan, D. Jassby, Y. Fang, D. Zhang, X. Qin, Z. Miao, S. Takahashi, J. Anzai, Q. Chen, J. Manso, M. L. Mena, and Y. Paloma,

"Electrochimica Acta A non-enzymatic hydrogen peroxide sensor based on poly (vinyl alcohol) – multiwalled carbon nanotubes – platinum nanoparticles hybrids modified glassy carbon electrode," J. Memb. Sci., vol. 70, pp. 266–271, 2008.

- [22] H. Zhu, H. Zeng, V. Subramanian, C. Masarapu, K. H. Hung, and B. Wei, "Anthocyaninsensitized solar cells using carbon nanotube films as counter electrodes," Nanotechnology, vol. 19, no. 46, 2008.
- [23] T. Assessment, A. Wisitsoraat, P. Sritongkham, C. Karuwan, D. "Immobilization of poly(N-vinyl-2-pyrrolidone)-capped platinum nanoclusters on indium-tin oxide glass and its application in dye-sensitized solar cells," Electrochim. Acta, vol. 102, no. 46, pp. 4847–4853, 2007.
- [24] J. Manso, M. L. Mena, and Y. Paloma, "Alcohol dehydrogenase amperometric biosensor based on a colloidal gold – carbon nanotubes composite electrode," vol. 53, pp. 4007–4012, 2008.
- [25] C. L. Burnett and B. Heldreth, "PVP (Polyvinylpyrrolidone)," Int. J. Toxicol., vol. 36, no. 5_suppl2, p. 50S–51S, 2017.
- [26] H. Niu, J. Zhang, Z. Xie, X. Wang, and T. Lin, "Preparation, structure and supercapacitance of bonded carbon nanofiber electrode materials," Carbon N. Y., vol. 49, no. 7, pp. 2380– 2388, 2011.
- [27] J. Lohrman, P. V Kumar, N. Ferralis, J. C. Grossman, S. Ren, N. P. Acs, M. Bernardi, J. Lohrman, and P. V Kumar, "Nanocarbon Based Photovoltaics," pp. 1–28, 2016.
- [28] B. Gao, C. Z. Yuan, L. H. Su, L. Chen, and X. G. Zhang, "Nickel oxide coated on ultrasonically pretreated carbon nanotubes for supercapacitor," J. Solid State Electrochem., vol. 13, no. 8, pp. 1251–1257, 2009.
- [29] C. Yuan, S. Xiong, X. Zhang, L. Shen, F. Zhang, B. Gao, and L. Su, "Template-free synthesis of ordered mesoporous NiO/poly(sodium-4-styrene sulfonate) functionalized carbon nanotubes composite for electrochemical capacitors," Nano Res., vol. 2, no. 9, pp. 722–732, 2009.

- [30] M. Grätzel, "Conversion of sunlight to electric power by nanocrystalline dye-sensitized solar cells &," vol. 164, pp. 3–14, 2004.
- [31] A. Jena, S. P. Mohanty, P. Kumar, J. Naduvath, V. Gondane, P. Lekha, J. Das, H. K. Narula, S. Mallick, and P. Bhargava, "Dye Sensitized Solar Cells: A Review," Trans. Indian Ceram. Soc., vol. 71, no. 1, pp. 1–16, 2012.

Chapter 3: Introduction to experimental and characterization techniques

There are multiple techniques involved in manufacturing of materials for solar cell fabrication. Similarly, multiple characterization techniques are being discussed in this chapter.

3.1. Deposition technique for counter electrode

There are multiple techniques used for deposition of conductive materials on the counter electrode for dye sensitized solar cells.

- I. Spin coating technique
- II. Electrospinning technique
- III. Chemical vapor deposition (CVD)
- IV. Doctor blade deposition technique

3.1.1 Electrospinning technique

In electrospinning technique, the conductive material is being deposited through charged deposition. Complex structures can be obtained through electrospinning techniques. The surface area of the deposited layer is higher in case of electrospinning technique. Nanofibers structures of diameter ranging from few nanometers to few micrometers are formed through electrospinning. In electrospinning nanofibers obtained have longest length. Due to electrospinning technique nano structural properties of solutions can be tested through Nano level fabrication. Over the past few years, more than 200 polymers were Electrospun for multiple purposes and much more are in process. The term "electrospinning" is being derived from "electrostatic spinning". This technology was being initiated in 1994. In this technology, two electrodes with opposite charges are being applied. One electrode is being placed in polymer fluid which is in injection while another charge is applied on the charged plate. The solution is ejected from the needle as a charged particle. The applied potential difference depends on properties of solution, for example, the viscosity of the solution and molecular weight of the solution. The distance between electrodes is

also very important. When this distance is short, spun fibers stuck to collecting plate and also to each other due to incomplete evaporation. DC voltage applied can reach up to 30KV. There are total three basic components in electrospinner, high voltage supplier, a capillary tube of few millimeter diameter and a metallic collector. In few cases, metallic electrode is grounded or supplied with a negative charge. Value of negative charge can be controlled from a knob on the control panel.

The main parameters of electrospinning are further divided into further respective groups which are the following

Solution

- Viscosity of solution
- Molecular weight of polymer
- Conductivity of polymer
- Concentration of solution
- Solvent properties of the solution
- Surface tension

Process parameters

- Voltage applied
- Flow rate
- Capillary geometry
- Distance from the capillary tube from the collector

Atmospheric parameters

- Temperature
- Relative humidity

3.1.1.1 Working Principle of electrospinning

Electrospinning equipment available at USPCASE is FLUIDNATEK LE 10. The image of the equipment is given below.



Figure 17: FLUIDNATEK LE 10 at USPCASE NUST

The FLUIDNATEK LE-10 is equipment working on the principle of electro-stretching or estretching technology. On Control panel there is a button and two knobs. Through control panel voltages applied can be varied and high voltage (HV) On button is also on the control panel. There is a button ON/OFF on back side of the electrospinner. Before switching on the equipment we have to make sure that collector HV socket which is shown in the Figure below is connected properly and connection plate is properly tightened through adjusting knob. The injection which can be seen in the Figure below should be placed properly and also should be tightened properly. In this equipment, it is possible to deposit two solutions simultaneously. There are two places for injection one is called Liquid-1 and Liquid-2. The flow rate of both liquids can be controlled through a button on the touch panel.

When we switch ON the equipment through ON/OFF button at the back side of the electrospinner. Then we have to switch on the high voltage equipment. Power on button is the control panel. When "power on" button is pressed HV indicator light switch on showing that high voltage is on. Voltage can be increased through knobs. Voltage should be increased slowly with the rotation of knob of injector potentiometer. Negative voltage potential can also be applied through collector potentiometer knob. The voltage applied is shown on screen (display) of electrospinner. Voltage should be kept below 30KV for the safe operation of the equipment. The flow rate is controlled through two flow controller button on touchscreen. [2]



Figure 18: Control panel on elecrtospinner



Figure 19: Flow rate control

3.1.1.2 Stepwise procedure of Electrospinning

There are multiple steps involved in electrospinning which are the following

- 1. Before switching on the equipment make sure that solution is filled in a syringe and all connections are properly installed.
- 2. Make sure that conductive glass (FTO coated glass)/ITO coated PET is attached on the conductive plate.
- 3. Switch on the equipment and on the high voltage button.
- 4. Rotate the knob to increase the voltage until reaching the desired voltage
- 5. After reaching the required voltage, start the flow of the fluid by setting the flow rate and pressing the RUN button on touchscreen.
- 6. Fluid will start coming out of the syringe and it will be in form of a jet.
- 7. Voltage is adjusted to make sure that taylor cone of the solution is formed properly.
- 8. Nanofibers will start depositing on the conductive glass.
- 9. Make sure that thickness of the thin film is enough so that it could work as counter electrode properly.

- 10. When the experiment is completed, decreased the voltage slowly by rotating the voltage knob.
- 11. Switch OFF the equipment from ON/OFF button and unplug the equipment.
- 12. Detach the glass/ sheet from conductive plate.
- 13. The counter electrode is tested by using SEM, XRD, AFM and Hall Effect.
- 14. The complete cell is fabricated by using micro fluidic technique.

3.1.2 Spin coating

Spin coating is another important technique used for deposition of the solution on glass/sheet. In this coating equipment, the vacuum pump is used to hold the substrate on which deposition is to be done. The substrate is placed on the rotating chunk and this chunk rotated at a high rotation



Figure 20: Spin coater in energy materials lab at USPCASE NUST

The available spin coater at USPCASE NUST is vacuum spin coater VTC-100. A vacuum pump is attached to spin coater. Rotation speed in spin coater VTC-100 varies from 500rpm to 8000rpm.



Figure 21: structure of spin coater



Figure 22: vacuum pump attached with spin coater

Spin coater works on the principle of centrifugal force.

The experimental steps involved in the spin coating are the following.

- 1. First of all, check lubricate level in the vacuum pump.
- 2. Place a glass or any other substrate on which coating is required on rotating chunk.

- 3. There are two cups inner cup and outer cup as shown in the Figure. Place the substrate on the center of rotating chunk.
- 4. Switch on vacuum pump by pressing "pump" button on control panel.
- Setting for spin coating is done by pressing "FCN" button. By pressing "FCN" button t1 will start blinking so time for low rpm is set by using + and – sign.
- After setting time t₁, press "FCN" and then sp1 will start blinking. Now set speed in rpm. At sp1 spin coater will rotate for t1 time.
- 7. Similarly set t_2 which is normally higher than t_1 .
- 8. Set high-speed sp₂. Sp₂ vary from 1500 rpm to 5000 rpm depending upon viscosity of the solution and required thickness of deposited material.
- 9. Then press the start button on control panel. Rotating chunk will start rotating at speed sp1.
- 10. Put few drops of prepared solution on the substrate.
- 11. It will change speed to sp₂ value after time t₁ seconds. For time t₂, the rotor will rotate at speed sp₂ for t₂ seconds.
- Rotator will stop automatically after completion of time sp₂ and vacuum will stop about 30sec after stopping of rotating chunk.
- 13. Take the coated substrate out and clean the equipment properly.

3.1.3 Chemical Vapor deposition (CVD) Technique

Chemical vapor deposition is one of the most important method of thin film fabrication. It is a process in which material is heated and converted to vapors form and then transported via the vapor phase to the reaction chamber. In the reaction chamber it decomposed on a heated target as a result of which chemical reaction happens and thin film is formed.

Many materials are deposited using CVD and related techniques like Metals oxides, sulfides, nitrides, phosphides and silicides. CVD processes are categorized according to Application, Process, Precursor and chemical reaction used. Optoelectronic material grown is one of the most important benefit of using CVD technique.



Figure 23: Schematics representation of steps of CVD process [5]

Multiple materials can be deposited on the substrate as well. There are many parameters influencing the growth and properties of the coating. Growth rate depends upon application and for electronics; normally it is around $0.1 \mu m/min$.



Figure 24: CVD schematic diagram for CNTs activation [7]

The Figure 24 is schematic diagram of activation of carbon nanotube. There are multiple metal composites, which are prepared through chemical vapor deposition technique. NiO-CNTs

composite is one of the most important composite prepared by using CVD method. CH₄/H₂ corona discharge enhanced CVD method is also one of the method of preparation of NiO-CNTs composite. Catalytic chemical vapor deposition process is also another type of chemical vapor deposition process. In this technique, Catalytic source and carbon are used for purification and functionalization of carbon nanotubes. Camphor, which is industrially available carbon precursor, is used because it is easily available and cost effective. Detail experimentation and NiO-CNTs preparation process is discussed in next chapter.

3.2 Characterization techniques

There are multiple techniques used for characterization of counter electrode and complete solar cell. Scanning electron microscope, X-ray diffraction, Hall Effect equipment and cyclic voltammetry is used for characterization of counter electrode. The solar simulator is used to find the efficiency of the complete DSSC. Thermal gravimetric analysis is used to find the aging effect on solar cell and degradation of a solar cell with time and with temperature.

3.2.1 Scanning electron microscope (SEM)

The scanning electron microscope is used for the surface study of the specimen. It can magnify the sample surface up to 200000 times. SEM is equipped with an electron gun, a condense lens, and an objective lens to produce electronic probe.



Figure 25: internal structure of scanning electron microscope [9]

SEM is used for topographic analysis while topography property is how a material looks like. Similarly, SEM is also used for Morphology (the shape and size of the particle) analysis of the material. The composition of material which means elements and compounds of the specimen under study can be determined through SEM. Crystallographic information which means how atoms are arranged in the material is derived from SEM results. SEM is preferred over ordinary microscope due to its higher magnification, higher depth of field and high resolution. Through SEM clear images can be obtained at nano meter resolution. Resolution is an ability to study two closely spaced points. Sample needs to be prepared for SEM testing. The sample should be conductive otherwise sample will start sparking and there will be no visible image. The nonconductive sample should be coated with either carbon or gold to make the sample conductive. There are back scattered electrons, beam electron and secondary electron which determine the properties of the specimen. SEM electron "kicks off" the electron from shells of the specimen under testing.



Figure 26: working principle of SEM [5]

The Figure 26 shows that electron beam collides with the sample and then few electrons back scatter and few are a secondary electron. High vacuum is created in the chamber to avoid collision with electron [3] [4] [5].

3.2.2 Energy dispersive spectroscopy (EDS)

Energy dispersive spectroscopy is also attached to SEM and through EDS composition of the sample at a particular point is determined. EDS uses X-rays emitted from the sample while the sample is being bombarded with a beam of electrons at a specific point. EDS provides localized chemical composition of the sample. It can identify all elements from atomic number 4 to 92. EDS is not a surface technique [6] [7].

3.2.3 X-ray Diffraction (XRD)

XRD works on the principle of Bragg's law. Bragg's law was derived by the English physicists Sir W.H. Bragg and his son Sir W.L. Bragg in 1913. XRD is used to measure the average spacing between the layers of the atoms of the specimen. XRD is used to determine crystal structure of materials and determine the orientation of crystal atoms.

Bragg's law is n.* lemda (wavelength) =2*d*sin (theta)

Where d is the space between the atoms.

When a beam of X-rays collides with the lattice plane of the structure of the material under testing, every atom of the material emits a secondary wave. These emitted secondary waves then interface with each other and finally produce a diffracted beam [8] [9].



Figure 27: Bragg's law as working principle of XRD [9]

XRD equipment work on the principle of Bragg's law derived from law of conservation of energy and law of conservation of momentum [10] [9].

The distance between the two planes is "d". When secondary waves interface constructively it will show a peak on the graph. The sample should be in powdered form for XRD or it should be coated on a substrate as a thin film. XRD is used for phase identification, radial distribution function, crystal distribution function, the percentage of material as crystalline or amorphous and determine the crystal structure of the sample [11] [12] [13] [14].



Figure 28: XRD machine (D-8 Advance) available at USPCASE

There are two arms like structure in XRD machine. X-rays source is on one side while the detector is on another side of the machine. We can scan the sample from $0^{\circ}-90^{\circ}$ but to be on the safe side we restrict from 10° to 80° [15].

3.2.4 Hall Effect

Hall Effect is an equipment, which is used to find the resistance, resistivity of film deposited on the substrate and charge mobility. Hall Effect equipment works on the principle of Lorentz force. Electricity and magnetic forces are used in Hall Effect equipment. As the magnetic field is increased, the electrons are deflected accordingly; the higher the current, the more electrons there are to deflect. Hall-effect probes are sophisticated and expensive needle like structure which connect to the surface of the film and current flow between these probes. Hall Effect sensors detect the current and give the value of resistance, resistivity, charge carrier concentration and mobility.

Hall Effect measurement system is used to find voltage difference between both diagonal sides of the probes, when current is flowing and magnet field strength is being applied, in perpendicular to flowing current direction. The Hall Effect measurement system is used to find the resistivity, concentration, and mobility of semiconductor (P type and N type). The software used in the solar simulator is I-V curve capability to check ohmic properties of the semiconductors and conductive coatings. The output of Hall Effect is resistance and curve between voltage and current. Hall effect measurement can be done at 77 K and 300 K (room temperature). Hall Effect measurement's theoretical basis is Lorentz Force and Van der pauw technique.

Permanent magnets and an integrated circuit switching system are used instead of heavy electromagnets and separate constant current source and DVM.



Figure 29: hall Effect measurement equipment at USPCASE NUST

The coated sample is cut according to the size of the four probes mounting board. The sample is placed at "+" size of the mounting board and probes are attached to the corner of the sample.



Figure 30: Sample-mounting board

Four sample mounting board is attached to the sample holder. Magnetic kit has two poles north (N) and south (S) pole. When the test is started, first north (N) to south(S) pole is applied and then poles are reversed from south (S) to north (N). Output graphs are temperature Vs concentration, temperature Vs mobility, temperature vs resistivity and IV curve. Temperature is varied from room temperature to 773 K.



Figure 31: Sample kit with 0.55 Tesla magnet supplied standard with the system

These obtained graphs give us the complete detail of the sample especially resistance of the material. In this project, the main requirement is to increase the conductivity of the thin film.

3.2.5 Cyclic Voltammetry (CV)

Voltammetry is a branch of experimental chemistry, in this experiment potential applied at working electrode and resulting current is measured, as a function of potential .Cyclic voltammetry is a technique used for analysis of current and voltage behavior in an electrochemical reaction. In CV, voltage is changed at a constant rate between two limits and change in current is monitored accordingly in an electrochemical cell. CV is most powerful tool to characterize the electrochemical behavior of analyses that can be electrochemically oxidized or reduced. The voltage is determined according to Nernst equation. The concentration is varied according to Firk's first law and state the mass transfer from high concentration to low concentration[16].

$$egin{aligned} i_p &= (2.69 imes 10^5) \; n^{3/2} \; SD_A^{1/2} \; v^{1/2} \; C_A, \ \partial/\partial ext{t} \; (ext{C}_A) = & ext{D}_A ^* \; \partial^2/\partial ext{x}^2 \; (ext{C}_A) \end{aligned}$$

D_A is diffusion coefficient of reactants.

The current is varied according to the equation given above.

n = No of electrons being gained in the reduction of the electrochemical reaction

S = Area of the working electrode in cm^2

 D_A = the diffusion coefficient

v= sweep rate

 $C_A = Bulk molar concentration$

This fundamental expression simply specifies the relationship between the potential of an electrode and the concentrations of the two species (designated O and R) involved in the redox reaction at that electrode:

$$O + n e^{-} \leftrightarrow R$$

$$E = E^{0'} + \frac{RT}{nF} \ln \left(\frac{C_o}{C_R}\right)$$

 $E^{o'}$ is the redox potential for the couple involving O and R and Co is the concentration of the oxidation and C_R is the concentration of the reduction half. Ratio of C_o and C_R is very in cyclic voltammetry. If the concentration at the electrode and in the solution is same that means, there is no driving force from solution to the surface of the electrode. The driving force of analyte from solution and electrode is due to diffusion [17]. The concentration difference in the solution and near electrode or at the electrode determine the voltage according to the Nernst equation.

There are following components of CV results

- Electrodes
 - Working electrode
 - o Reference electrode
 - Counter electrode
- Solvent
- Computer operated software
- Supporting electrolyte (Sodium sulphoite).

Applied voltage is kept between 0.8 V and -0.8 V as solution is aqueous and it above 1V aqueous solution start splitting.

There are following types of currents and voltages involved in CV.

• Peak cathodic current i_{pc} is current flows when rate of reduction is maximum.

- Peak anodic current i_{pa} is current flows when rate of oxidation is maximum.
- Peak cathodic voltage E_{pc} is potential at which rate of reduction is maximum.
- Peak anodic voltage E_{pa} is potential at which rate of oxidation is maximum.

There are following types of electrodes involved in CV analysis.

- Working electrode is the electrode on which potential is varied with time where redox reaction of analyte occur.
- Reference electrode is the electrode with respect to which the potential of working electrode is made e.g (Ag/Agcl electrode).
- Reference electrode is the electrode as it completes the circuit by conducting ethrough solution to the working electrode.
- Supporting electrode is nonreactive electrolyte to conduct current.

3.3 Assembling of complete DSSC

The deposited counter electrode is tested by fabricating complete solar cell using the microfluidic technique. The microfluidic sealing technique is to join photo anode and counter electrode separated through the spacer. An electrolyte is filled in the space created due to the spacer. Two holes are drilled in counter electrode (coated PET) so that electrolytes could be filled between photo anode and the counter electrode.



Figure 32: Complete assembly of DSSC using microfluidic technique [15]

A standard photo anode is a metal oxide layer deposited on an ITO/FTO coated conductive glass. A dye solution is being prepared by dissolving dye in absolute ethanol. This solution is sonicated for half an hour to ensure proper dispersion of the dye in ethanol. The metal oxide based photoanode is dipped in the dye solution for 2-3 hours and then cleaned with distilled water. In DSSC assembly "Iodolyte AN-150, Solaronix" is used as electrolyte. The counter electrode is also cleaned with ethanol before microfluidic sealing. PDMS membrane is used as a spacer between photo anode and counter electrode. A cell is being assembled according to the Figure above. Copper foils are used to connect the terminals for testing.

3.3.1 Characterization of DSSC

The solar cells are tested under one sun and air mass (AM-1.5). solar cell is characherized in IV measurement system at Air Mass(AM) 1.5. To simmulate the solar spectrum accuraately, high pressure xenon arc lamp sources and air mass . filters are used. The IV profiller is an equipment used for solar cell characterization. Efficiency is measured through IV measurement system. A

graph is obtained between the output voltage and output current when solar simulator light is applied through series arc lamp. The intensity of solar light on earth is about 100 mW/cm². The graph obtained through solar simulator is called IV curve.

A solar simulator consists of main two components

- 1. Xenon Arc Lamps as light source.
- 2. Optics and filters required to get the output according to test requirements [1].

Xenon lamps are used because spectrum of xenon is very close to sun light so xenon light can better simulate sun light.

There are few steps involved in solar simulator characterization.

- 1. Switch on the setup and make sure that all fans are working properly.
- 2. Turn ON the lamp and wait for until it stabilize.
- 3. One the lamp shutter. It is necessary to wear safety gloves for safety purpose.
- 4. Calibrate the setup by using standard calibration solar cell provided by the manufacturer.
- 5. Connect the cell (required to test) instead of standard calibration cell.
- 6. Connections should be proper otherwise, our results will not be correct.

There are four important values to be confirmed of standard solar cell, which are over circuit voltage, short circuit current, fill factor and efficiency of the solar cell. Values of these parameters are being provided by the manufacturer.
The light source is monochromatic and output of the light source is equivalent to one sun. Arc lamp and mercury xenon lamp both are used in the solar simulator. The solar simulator used in this project is manufactured by Scienectech. Arc lamp used in equipment is Scienectech arc lamp system is 201 series lamp and power supply used is 501-300 series.



Figure 33: Solar simulator in advance energy materials lab at USPCASE NUST

Software used in the solar simulator is "SciRun". In software, there is multiple sweep setting which are a normal sweep, reverse sweep, dual sweep, and dark sweep.

In the normal sweep, sweep load voltage from 0V (short circuit current) to Voc (open circuit voltage).

In reverse sweep allow the user to specify from IV sweep from open circuit voltage (Voc) to short circuit current (Isc) instead of normally operating condition Isc to Voc.

In dual sweep, the bidirectional sweep is performed to examine hysteresis effects.

In dark sweep current limited reverse voltage sweep from 0 to -10 volts under the dark condition to find the shunt resistance and effect of breakages in the solar cell.

Through solar simulator, output of concentrated solar cell can also be calculated. The concentration of up to 100 suns can be achieved through xenon lamp and an arc lamp.

In IV measurement system, the output is Voc, Isc, fill factor (FF) and efficiency. Fill factor is term explaining the ideal behavior of the solar cell.



Figure 34: output curve of IV measurement of solar cell at AM 1.5

The IV measurements are also taken in the dark as well so better characterize a solar cell. The IV measurement at AM 1.5 is like solar cell working in the environment outside. By using IV measurement, a solar cell can be categorized based on fill factor, efficiency, Voc and Isc of the solar cells.

Chapter summary

In this chapter, experimental techniques and characterization techniques are being discussed. Counter electrode of DSSC is fabricated by using spin coating technique, electrospinning technique and doctor blade technique. Two techniques spin coating and electrospinning techniques are used in experiments and both techniques are discussed in detail in this chapter. In electrospinning and spin coating techniques, solution preparation for deposition is very important because deposition depend on multiple factors and solution preparation is one the most important factor. Equipment working process and experimental procedures of electrospinning and spin coating techniques are discussed in detail. Morphology of material is being find using X-rays diffraction (XRD) technique. Similarly to find the structural details of the material, scanning electron microscope (SEM) analysis technique is also being performed. Hall Effect technique is used to find the conductivity of the deposited films. Similarly, cyclic voltammetry is discussed in this chapter. CV is used to find the catalytic activity of the counter electrode. Detail and working principle of both techniques are discussed in detail. Dye sensitized solar cell is fabricated using microfluidic analysis. Then complete cell is tested under IV profiler at AM 1.5.

Reference:

- [1] M. Grätzel, U. Bach, D. Lupo, P. Comte, J. E. Moser, F. Weissörtel, J. Salbeck, and H. Spreitzer, "Solid-state dye-sensitized mesoporous TiO₂ solar cells with high photon-to-electron conversion efficiencies," Nature, vol. 395, no. 6702, pp. 583–585, Oct. 1998.
- [2] P. Joshi, L. Zhang, Q. Chen, D. Galipeau, H. Fong, and Q. Qiao, "Electrospun carbon nanofibers as low-cost counter electrode for dye-sensitized solar cells," ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces, vol. 2, no. 12, pp. 3572–3577, 2010.
- University of California, "Brief Introduction To Scanning Electron Microscopy (Sem)," no. i, pp. 1–8.
- [4] P. Johnson, "Electron Microscopy Comparison of OM, TEM and SEM," Mater. Sci., 2005.
- [5] G. Zavagli and G. Ricci, "Scanning electron microscopy (SEM) in haemolysis," Ultramicroscopy, vol. 12, no. 1–2, p. 160, 1983.
- [6] D. S. Su, "Scanning electron microscopy (SEM)," pp. 1–46, 2010.
- [7] B. Hafner, "Energy Dispersive Spectroscopy on the SEM: A Primer," Charact. Facil. Univ. Minnesota, pp. 7–10, 2006.
- [8] J. Pickworth Glusker and K. N. Trueblood, "Crystal Structure Analysis," pp. 2–3, 1998.
- [9] V. Accordingly and I. Boxes, Principles of X-ray Diffraction. 2006.
- [10] "Mod-10 Lec-28 Chemical & Compositional Characterization- XRD & AFM YouTube."
- [11] J. G. Brown, "Diffraction of X-rays," X-Rays Their Appl., pp. 95–121, 1966.
- [12] X. Diffraction and I. Sources, "Bragg's Law," Production, vol. 5, no. 6, pp. 371–372, 1970.
- [13] J. Young Sam, K. Kyung Hwan, P. Sang Joon, Y. Hyon Hee, and C. Hyung Wook,

"Properties of TiO_2 Films Prepared for Use in Dye-sensitized Solar Cells by Using the Sol-gel Method at Different Catalyst Concentrations," J. Korean Phys. Soc., vol. 57, no. 41, p. 1049, 2010.

- [14] H. Yoon, "Current Trends in Sensors Based on Conducting Polymer Nanomaterials," Nanomaterials, vol. 3, no. 3, pp. 524–549, 2013.
- [15] J. Wu, Q. Li, L. Fan, Z. Lan, P. Li, J. Lin, and S. Hao, "High-performance polypyrrole nanoparticles counter electrode for dye-sensitized solar cells," J. Power Sources, vol. 181, no. 1, pp. 172–176, 2008.
- [16] I. Roppolo, N. Shahzad, A. Sacco, E. Tresso, and M. Sangermano, "Multifunctional NIRreflective and self-cleaning UV-cured coating for solar cell applications based on cycloaliphatic epoxy resin," Prog. Org. Coatings, vol. 77, no. 2, pp. 458–462, 2014.
- [17] D. Evans, K. O'Connell, R. Petersen, and M. Kelly, "Cyclic voltammetry," J. Chem. Educ., vol. 60, no. 4, 1983.

Chapter 4: Experiments

Counter electrodes for DSSCs are fabricated by using different materials and fabrication techniques. These techniques and materials are discussed in detail in this chapter.

4.1 Materials

Multiple polymers are being used for dispersion of carbon nanotubes. Polyvinyl pyrrolidone and poly (3,4-ethylenedioxythiophene) polystyrene sulfonate (PEDOT: PSS) are polymers used for dispersion of carbon nanotubes. Dimethyl sulfoxide Fisher Bio Reagent of 99.8% with boiling point 189°C is also used in experimentation.

All chemical and precursors like Ethanol (99.9%), Ethylene Glycol, Nickel acetate, H₂SO₄ and HNO3 are purchased from Sigma.

4.2 Growth of Nanomaterials

The nanomaterials are prepared by using chemical vapor deposition (CVD) and co-precipitation method.

4.2.1 Growth of carbon nanotubes

Multi walled carbon nanotubes (MWCNTs) are prepared through catalytic chemical vapor deposition (CVD) process, which has already been reported ELSEVIER [1] and described here briefly. Catalytic source (iron) and carbon (camphor) are used for growth of carbon nanotubes. Camphor which is industrially available carbon precursor is used because it is easily available and cost effective [1][2].



Figure 35: CVD setup for preparation of CNTs

The setup consists of three zones cylindrical furnace. Nitrogen is used in this setup to keep the setup inert. In flask, assembly is placed on a hot plate and furnace temperature is kept at 850°C. Reagent will start vaporizing after attaining 200°C. Vapors will flow due to the proper temperature difference. Carbon species and iron constituents are delivered through high-temperature furnace due to the pyrolysis. Thus carbon nanotubes were grown by the deposition of carbon species on Si substrate and iron particles acted as a catalyst. MWCNTs are purified through a thermal treatment, in which CNTs are heated at 450°C for 4 hours. Sulphuric acid and nitric acid are mixed in 3:1 and functionalized it at environmental temperature. PH of CNTs is made normal by washing the sample with ionized water. Washing is done until PH of the sample is neutralized. CNTs are dried at 100°C [3] [4].



Figure 36: Flow diagram of preparation of functionalized CNTs

These prepared CNTs were purified by thermal treatment and functionalized using chemical process.

Functionalization is basically a process of improving the surface properties of CNTs. There are two types of types of functionalization, chemical and physical functionalization basis on the interaction of CNTs and active materials. In this case, functionalization is of CNTs is performed to increase its interaction with NiO to form better composite material.

Chemical functionalization is basically based on covalent bond of functional groups onto carbon forms of CNTs. Defects can be formed at the end cap of the carbon nanotube or at the side wall.to perform this process there is need of high reactive materials. The process used here is chemical process of functionalization of CNTs. In this process, covalent functionalization caused variation in hybridization of CNTs is varied from sp^2 to sp^3 [6]. There is also another method called defect functionalization of CNTs and this done by using strong acids. These strong acids cause oxidative damage to the CNTs framework and this leave a hole functionalized with oxygenated functional group. The strong used are normally HNO₃, H₂SO₄ or a mixture of these both in different ratios. These cause defects at the end sites of the tubes [7]. These defects can attract multiple groups thus this process is very useful to increase the conductive properties of CNTs. Due to functionalization, CNTs become soluble in multiple organic solvents because CNTs can possess polar as well as non-polar groups. Thus modification of CNTs improve compatibility and solubility [8][9].

4.2.2 Growth and preparation of NiO and NiO-CNTs composite by coprecipitation method

NiO-CNTs nanocomposite is prepared by using co-precipitation method. In co-precipitation method for the preparation of NiO, EG solution is prepared by dissolving 0.5g of EG of in 100ml of distilled water and heated at 80°C for 1 hour. A 25 ml solution of nickel acetate is prepared by dissolving 0.5g of nickel acetate in dis-H₂O. NiO solutions is mixed and poured in EG solution and then stirred for around 1 hour. 0.1M NaOH solution is added dropwise to flask containing both EG and nickel acetate solution. When PH=12 is attained then put the solution for stirring for 3 hrs. The precipitates are filtered and washed multiple times with distilled water to neutralize the PH of the precipitate. After this, precipitates is dried at 100°C and calcination is performed for 4hrs at $350^{\circ}C[1][2][5]$.

Functionalization is basically a process of improving the surface properties of CNTs. There are two types of types of functionalization, chemical and physical functionalization basis on the interaction of CNTs and active materials. In this case, functionalization is of CNTs is performed to increase its interaction with NiO to form better composite material. Chemical functionalization is basically based on covalent bond of functional groups onto carbon forms of CNTs. Defects can be formed at the end cap of the carbon nanotube or at the side wall.to perform this process there is need of high reactive materials. The process used here is chemical process of functionalization of CNTs. In this process, covalent functionalization caused variation in hybridization of CNTs is varied from sp^2 to sp^3 [6]. There is also another method called defect functionalization of CNTs and this done by using strong acids. These strong acids cause oxidative damage to the CNTs framework and this leave a hole functionalized with oxygenated functional group. The strong used are normally HNO₃, H₂SO₄ or a mixture of these both in different ratios. These cause defects at the end sites of the tubes [7]. These defects can attract multiple groups thus this process is very useful to increase the conductive properties of CNTs. Due to functionalization, CNTs become soluble in multiple organic solvents because CNTs can possess polar as well as non-polar groups. Thus modification of CNTs improve compatibility and solubility [8][9].



Figure 37: Flow diagram of preparation of NiO nanocomposite

NiO-CNT composite is highly conductive material and used for preparation of electrode for batteries, capacitors and solar cells. NiO-CNTs composites is prepared in lab with different ratios of NiO and CNTs and finally an optimized ratio is achieved. Co precipitation method is being used for preparation of NiO-CNTs composite as well. NiO-CNTs composites are prepared by mixing NiO and MWCNTs. 0.2g of EG is dispersed in deionized water and heated for 1 hour.



Figure 38: Process flow diagram for preparation of NiO-CNTs

4.3 Solution preparation for electrode deposition

Poly vinyl propodilene (PVP) is a polymer which is being used to fabricate NiO/CNTs/ NiO-CNTs based counter electrode for dye sensitized solar cells. 5mg of MWCNTs are dispersed in 5ml of dimethyl sulfoxide. This solution is sonicated for 1 hour and then stirred for 48 hours. 0.5ml of PEDOT: PSS is added to MWCNTs solution. [10].

1 gram of polyvinyl pyrrolidone is mixed in the already prepared PEDOT: PSS NiO-CNTs solution. This solution is kept for stirring for 12 hours then sonicated for one hour. In this process, it is also necessary to observe the viscosity of the solution and if required increase sonication or stirring time. To control the viscosity properly, add a small amount of Polyvinyl pyrrolidone step by step.

Table 2: Solution composition

Solution	PVP(mg)	PEDOT:PSS(ml)	DMSO(ml)	CNTs(mg)	NiO(mg)	NiO-CNTs
Solution 1	100	3	20	10		
Solution 2	100	3	20		20	
Solution 3	100	3	20			10

4.4 Fabrication of counter electrode by spin coating

The ITO coated PET and FTO glass are deposited by using spin coating technique. This technique is used by varying the prepared solution and multiple factors in deposition technique.

Nano materials are dispersed in PEDOT:PSS and then coated on ITO coated PET (purchased from sigma Aldrich) and FTO (purchased from sigma Aldrich) glass. Spin coating technique is used for coating the PET and FTO glass. Multiple coatings are required for fabrication of counter electrode because a single coating is not enough to get fruitful results. Ito coated PET piece of 2cm * 2cm are coated because available Photoanode is of similar size. The sample is not highly viscous so we keep the rotation speed low so that highest thickness could be obtained. The primary rotation speed is 500 rpm and secondary speed is 1000 rpm. The time t1 is set as 15 sec and similarly time t2 is set as 20 sec. The coated PET and glass are dried in drying oven at 60°C for 90 mints. The obtained sample are then tested under hall effect equipment to find conductivity of the deposited film and to find charge carrier mobility [11][12].

4.5 Assembling of complete Dye sensitized solar cell

The microfluidic technique is used to connect all the components of dye sensitized solar cells. This complete cell is then further tested under solar simulator and IV curve is being obtained as results. ZnO is deposited on FTO conductive glass following the method described in published article [2]. Photoanode is placed on the hot plate at 70°C for 10 mints and then dipped in a dye solution for 6 hours. After 6 hours of dipping, photoanode is taken out of solution and dye is removed carefully with ethanol. The spacer is used to create space for filling of electrolyte between photoanode and the counter electrode [13][14]. After placing the spacer on photoanode, the counter

electrode is placed on top of spacer carefully because both holes of the counter electrode should be with in space by the spacer. PMMA clamping is then placed at top of it. Placing of clamping is also very important because we have to fill the electrolyte through the holes of the PMMA clamping. Screws are then tightened with screw carefully. All screws are tightened step by step so that there is no high pressure on any side of the FTO glass [15]. Uneven tightening of the screws can cause breakage of FTO glass. After completing the assembly, the electrolyte is filled through holes with special syringe and a thin plastic tube. "Iodolyte AN-150, Solaronix" is used as an electrolyte in DSSC assembly

Chapter summary

In this chapter, experiments are performed to prepare NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs composite. Carbon nanotubes are purified using catalytic chemical vapor deposition. PEDOT:PSS, PVP and PVA are polymers used for polymerization of CNTs. The polymers are used in different ratio to adjust the viscosity of the solution. NiO nano-material is prepared and similarly CNTs are purified. Then using both NiO and CNTs NiO-CNTs composite is prepared. Then solution of NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs are prepared. Dye is absorbed on ITO coated PET so form the counter electrode. These solutions are deposited using electrospinning and spin coating technique. ZnO photoanode is used and similarly electrolyte is filled in between photoanode and counter electrode. Complete DSSC is fabricated by using microfluidic analysis. Complete cell is fabricated.

Reference:

- M. I. Shahzad *et al.*, "Extensive growth of MWCNTs on copper substrates using various diffusion barrier layers," *Diam. Relat. Mater.*, vol. 82, no. 2017, pp. 124–131, 2018.
- [2] N. Shahzad, A. Lamberti, D. Pugliese, M. I. Shahzad, and E. Tresso, "Real time monitoring of ultrafast sensitization for Dye-Sensitized Solar Cell photoanodes," *Sol. Energy*, vol. 130, pp. 74–80, 2016.
- [3] G. Che, B. B. Lakshmi, C. R. Martin, E. R. Fisher, and R. S. Ruoff, "Chemical Vapor Deposition Based Synthesis of Carbon Nanotubes and Nanofibers Using a Template Method," *Chem. Mater.*, vol. 10, no. 1, pp. 260–267, 1998.
- [4] A. V. Melechko *et al.*, "Vertically aligned carbon nanofibers and related structures: Controlled synthesis and directed assembly," *J. Appl. Phys.*, vol. 97, no. 4, 2005.
- [5] I. Roppolo, N. Shahzad, A. Sacco, E. Tresso, and M. Sangermano, "Multifunctional NIRreflective and self-cleaning UV-cured coating for solar cell applications based on cycloaliphatic epoxy resin," *Prog. Org. Coatings*, vol. 77, no. 2, pp. 458–462, 2014.
- [6] I. Jeon and D. W. Chang, "Functionalization of Carbon Nanotubes," *Carbon Nanotub. -Polym. Nanocomposites*, pp. 91–110, 2011.
- [7] L. Meng, C. Fu, and Q. Lu, "Advanced technology for functionalization of carbon nanotubes," *Prog. Nat. Sci.*, vol. 19, no. 7, pp. 801–810, 2009.
- [8] V. T. Le, C. L. Ngo, Q. T. Le, T. T. Ngo, D. N. Nguyen, and M. T. Vu, "Surface modification and functionalization of carbon nanotube with some organic compounds," *Adv. Nat. Sci. Nanosci. Nanotechnol.*, vol. 4, no. 3, 2013.
- [9] C. Yuan *et al.*, "Template-free synthesis of ordered mesoporous NiO/poly(sodium-4styrene sulfonate) functionalized carbon nanotubes composite for electrochemical capacitors," *Nano Res.*, vol. 2, no. 9, pp. 722–732, 2009.

- [10] C.-Y. Yen *et al.*, "Preparation and properties of a carbon nanotube-based nanocomposite photoanode for dye-sensitized solar cells.," *Nanotechnology*, vol. 19, no. 37, pp. 1–9, 2008.
- B. Fan, X. Mei, K. Sun, and J. Ouyang, "Conducting polymer/carbon nanotube composite as counter electrode of dye-sensitized solar cells," *Appl. Phys. Lett.*, vol. 93, no. 14, pp. 99–102, 2008.
- [12] X. Zhao *et al.*, "A novel hierarchical Pt- and FTO-free counter electrode for dye-sensitized solar cell.," *Nanoscale Res. Lett.*, vol. 9, no. 1, p. 202, 2014.
- [13] P. Joshi, L. Zhang, Q. Chen, D. Galipeau, H. Fong, and Q. Qiao, "Electrospun carbon nanofibers as low-cost counter electrode for dye-sensitized solar cells," ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces, vol. 2, no. 12, pp. 3572–3577, 2010.
- [14] R. Plass, S. Pelet, J. Krueger, M. Grätzel, and U. Bach, "Quantum dot sensitization of organic-inorganic hybrid solar cells," *J. Phys. Chem. B*, vol. 106, no. 31, pp. 7578–7580, 2002.
- [15] J. Y. Lin, J. H. Liao, and T. Y. Hung, "A composite counter electrode of CoS/MWCNT with high electrocatalytic activity for dye-sensitized solar cells," *Electrochem. commun.*, vol. 13, no. 9, pp. 977–980, 2011.

Chapter 5: Results and Discussions

Structural, morphological and composition analysis of materials and deposited films are performed by using SEM, EDS and XRD. Electrochemical properties of materials are obtained through cyclic voltammetry while electrical properties are find through Hall Effect.

5.1 Morphological, compositional and structural analysis

There are multiple techniques used to find the composition of materials. In morphology and composition analysis techniques, there are SEM, EDS and XRD analysis technique. These techniques inform about composition of the materials and morphology of the material.

5.1.1 SEM, EDS and XRD analysis of CNTs

This image clearly shows the formation of CNTs and hence it has been verified that CNTs have been formed properly.



Figure 39: CNTs at 5um resolution

The Figure 39 shows the SEM images are at 5um. These clearly show the formation of CNTs. When further go down then it became clearer.



Figure 40: Mapping of CNTs on SEM image at high resolution

The Figure 40 shows the structure of CNTs. The diameter of CNTs is less than 100 nm which are very perfect for fabrication of counter electrode for dye sensitized solar cells. Carbon nanotubes are of very low diameter due to which resistance is reduced. The resistance of the material is inversely proportional to the area of the material so when the diameter of the tube is reduced resistance has increased.

The EDS analysis of the samples show the percentages of the elements in that material. The EDS results of the CNTs are given below.



Figure 41: EDS results of the CNTs

The line scan is taken to show the elements present in the sample by taking analysis of a line. The percentage of the elements are given below.

Element	Weight%	Atomic%
СК	94.74	96.26
ОК	4.77	3.64
Fe K	0.49	0.11
Totals	100.00	

Table 3: Percentage of elements in CNTs

The above table clearly shows the percentage of the elements in CNTs. Carbon is the major elements in material. Oxygen and iron are impurities. Oxygen is result of heating the material at high temperature due to which oxygen is formed.

This image shows the formation of carbon material. Iron has peaked at that specific point but elemental analysis shows the proper formation of carbon materials.





Figure 42: XRD analysis of CNTs

The peak at angle 26° matched the (2 0 0) plane of the carbon which is carbon nanotube. Another shoulder like peak has been observed at 24 which might be due to minute quantity of oxygen and iron.

5.1.2 SEM, EDS and XRD analysis of NiO

The images below is SEM image of NiO Nano particles. This image show the structure of NiO. It show diameter of the nano particles.



Figure 43: Mapping of NiO on SEM image at 1um resolution

The image of NiO at 1um resolution show the Nano structure of NiO. There are particles of 50 nm diameter. These structure are mostly round shape and a few are elliptical as shown in Figure. The image gets a bit unclear at this high resolution.

The EDS result shows the presence of all the elements in that sample. Results of EDS analysis of NiO are given below.





The Figure 44 shows the peaks of Ni and oxygen. The percentage weightage table is also given below.

Element	Weight%	Atomic%
O K	45.20	75.16
Ni K	54.80	24.84
Totals	100.00	

Table 4: percentage	composition of	of NiO
---------------------	----------------	--------

The weight percentage composition of Ni is 55 and oxygen is 45. This result is point analysis of NiO. Similar results are being obtained for line analysis of NiO.

XRD analysis of the material is also performed to find the structure and obtained output is the following.



Figure 45: XRD analysis of NiO

The result in Figure 45 is match of NiO [3]. The peak at angle 36° (2 thetha) is (1 1 1) plane of NiO. The peak at angle 43° is of plane (2 0 0). The plane at angle 63° is (2 0 0).

5.1.3 SEM, EDS and XRD analysis of NiO-CNTs:



Figure 46: SEM image of NiO-CNTs at 5 um

NiO-CNTs composite are also characterized for morphology, elemental and composition and results are reported in Figure 46, Figure 47, Figure 48 and Figure 49.



Figure 47: Mapping of NiO-CNTs on SEM image at 1um resolution

As these images at different resolution, clearly shows the formation of CNTs-NiO composite. Diameter of carbon nanotubes is in range of 50 nm to 100 nm. EDS analysis of NiO-CNTs composite is the also given below.



Figure 48: Line EDS analysis of NiO-CNTs

Element	Weight%	Atomic%
СК	74.68	81.40
O K	21.76	17.81
Fe K	0.09	0.02
Ni K	3.47	0.77
Totals	100.00	

Table 5: EDS results of NiO-CNTs

The table 6 shows the percentage of carbon, oxygen and Nickel. Iron is an impurity, which is in very less percentage around 0.21%. The SEM images and EDS results shows the successful formation of NiO-CNTs composite.

XRD analysis of NiO-CNTs is also performed. The result matches the Figure of NiO-CNTs as described in literature. The matched output of XRD is given below.



Figure 49: XRD analysis of NiO-CNTs

The peak at angle 26° matches the peak of CNT and other three peaks matches the peaks of NiO as discussed in NiO section. The results better explain the phase of the material and explain about its exact phase form.

5.1.4 Morphology of deposited films:

The films are deposited on ITO coated PET. The SEM and EDS analysis is performed on ITO coated PET. The samples are coated with gold to make the surface more conductive so that better images could be captured at high magnification. The SEM images of NiO-CNTs deposited on ITO coated PET are in the Figure 50 and Figure 51.



Figure 50: SEM of NiO-CNTs at 5um

Above image is at low resolution around 5um while the other SEM is taken at 500nm resolution to get more detailed analysis of the deposited film.



Figure 51: SEM image of NiO-CNTs deposited on PET at 500nm

The above images gets blur due to high resolution.



Figure 52:EDS analysis of NiO-CNTs

Element	Weight%	Atomic%
СК	68.75	87.10
ОК	13.20	12.55
Ni K	1.32	0.34
Totals	83.27	

Table 6: Compositional analysis of NiO-CNTs coated film

5.2 UV-Vis spectroscopy analysis:

UV-VIS spectroscopy is used to find the transmittance of the counter electrode in my research. Transmittance is very important factor of solar cell to use them in buildings as transparent/semitransparent windows. Below is the comparison of transmittance of all three materials based counter electrodes.



Figure 53: Transparency of NiO-CNTs, CNTs and NiO based counter electrode

The graph above shows that NiO-CNTs based counter electrode is more transparent as compared to NiO and CNTs alone. Thus by using NiO-CNTs transparent dye sensitized solar cells can be fabricated.

5.3 Electrochemical analysis by cyclic voltammetry

Electrochemical properties of counter electrode are very important in dye sensitized solar cell. To determine electrochemical properties of counter electrode, graph is plotted current versus voltage.

CV analysis is performed on NiO, NiO-CNTs and CNTs materials. The purpose is to compare the electrochemical properties and analyze the better option for counter electrode of dye-sensitized solar cells.



The Figure 54 is result of CV analysis of NiO. The experiment is run for two cycles. The current reaches up to 18uA.

Applied voltage is kept between 0.8 V and -0.8 V as solution is aqueous and it above 1V aqueous solution start splitting.

The Figure 55 is result cyclic voltammetry of CNTs as counter electrode. The graph clearly shows that as compared to NiO from the previous Figure the current is high as voltage is increased. Voltage is varied between +0.7V and -0.7V. Current vary between -40uA and 40uA when voltage is applied. Due to applied voltage, current flow and the amount of current tell about properties of counter electrode.





The Figure 56 is cyclic voltammetry result of NiO-CNTs. The sample is analyzed at multiple scan rate. The graph clearly shows the better performance of NiO-CNTs as compared to NiO and CNTs.

By increasing the scan rate, reaction time is reduced thus recombination is reduced which results in higher current values. As the voltage is varied between -0.7Vand 0.7V, the current varies between -65uA and 65uA which is much wider range than that of NiO and CNTs. Higher the current means lower resistance and thus electron will pass quickly at counter electrode. This would favor the reaction at counter electrode in case of NiO-CNTs as compared to NiO and CNTs [1].

The redox peak at the right side of the CV graph is related to the oxidation reaction which means conversion of tri iodide ion into iodide ion $(I_3^- + 2e^- \rightarrow 3I^-)$, which occurs at the CE of the DSSC and is vital for its operation; the left peaks corresponding to $3I^- \rightarrow I_3^- + 2e^-$ and is insignificant in the context of DSSC. For analysis of catalytic performance of the cell, it is very important to find the peak-to-peak distance, peak cathode voltage and peak current density.

Left bottom of the CV results show the anode of the solar cell while the top right side of the Figure shows the cathode of the DSSC.



Figure 57: Cathodic and anodic reaction on CV curve

An efficient counter electrode should have low peak-to-peak distance and high current density. High current means reaction rate is high while low peak-to-peak potential difference means over potential is low. The Figure above shows the trend of increase of peaks with increase in scan rate. The voltage difference determine the reactivity of the electrode.

5.4 Electrical properties of deposited film by Hall Effect

Electrical properties of counter electrodes are very important to consider. Efficiency of solar cells depend on electrical properties of electrodes. Hall Effect analysis is used to find the conductivity, mobility and resistivity of the coated sample. In this study, Ecopia HMS-3000 is Hall Effect equipment, which is used for electrical analysis.

Material	Sheet	Resistivity(ohm.cm)	Mobility	Conductivity
	resistance(ohm/cm)		(cm^2/Vs)	(1/ohm.cm)
NiO	2.52*10 ⁹	$2.52*10^{6}$	3.78*10 ⁻¹	3.97*10 ⁻⁷
CNTs	7.71*10 ⁷	7.71*10 ⁴	3.289	1.297*10 ⁻⁵
NiO-	6.26*10 ⁶	60.26*10 ³	$2.49*10^2$	1.597*10 ⁻⁴
CNTs				

Table 7: comparison of properties on basis of Hall Effect

The table 7 shows the resistivity, mobility and conductivity of coated film. This table shows that NiO-CNTs based film has high conductivity, high mobility and low resistance as compared to NiO and CNTs coated films. NiO-CNTs properties are much better than CNTs. The conductivity of NiO-CNTs coated film is more than ten times CNTs coated film. High conductivity of NiO-CNTs based counter electrode would leads to better efficiency of DSSC.

5.5 Efficiency comparison of DSSCs

Complete solar cells are assembled and characterized using IV measurement setup under 1.5 AM illumination. Output of IV measurement setup is in form of current and voltage curves. The results are plotted in the following figures.



Figure 58: Comparison of IV measurement of NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs based DSSC

A comparison is made based on these results. Fill factor (FF), Voc, Isc, Vm and Im are derived for all three solar cells and reported in the table below. Power conversion efficiency (PCE) has also been calculated and compared in the same table.

	NiO	CNTs	NiO-CNTs
Voc	0.32	0.47	0.47
Isc	0.012	0.014	0.09
V _m	0.25	0.35	0.3
Im	0.008	0.012	0.07
FF	52.08	42.87	49.56
PCE (%)	0.09	0.190	0.9545
Efficiency as compared to NiO	1	2.11	10.60

Table 8: Comparison of DSSC based on counter electrode from NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs

This table clearly shows that NiO-CNTs based DSSC performed much better as compared to NiO and CNTs based dye sensitized solar cell.

From Figure 58, Voc of NiO based DSSC is observed to be lower than other two counter electrode based DSSCs which shows that addition of CNTs in NiO has greatly enhanced the performance of electrode. Isc of DSSC based on NiO-CNTs composite is much higher than the other two counter electrode based solar cells. This effect can be related to higher electronic transportation and collection in composite in DSSC. In NiO chances of recombination are very high but with addition of CNTs, transport is being assisted thus recombination is reduced. Due to reduced recombination, electronic transportation is improved.
Chapter summary

In this chapter characterization techniques are discussed in detail. Morphology of NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs composite are characterized using XRD analysis techniques. Peaks obtained from XRD analysis of NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs exactly matches the peaks of NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs SEM analysis is used to observe the structure of the material. SEM of NiO shows the nano structure of NiO. Similarly SEM analysis of CNTs show the nanotube structure of CNTs. The diameter of CNTs is a few nano meters. SEM analysis of NiO-CNTs show the nano structure of NiO and nanotube of carbon. EDS analysis confirms the percentages of Ni, Oxygen and carbon in NiO-CNTs which clear that composite is properly prepared. Hall Effect equipment is used to find the conductivity and charge mobility of the coated film. This shows that conductivity of NiO-CNTs is better than NiO and CNTs alone. Cyclic voltammetry is used to find the catalytic properties of NiO, CNTs and NiO-CNTs composite. The result shows that NiO-CNTs is better as compared to catalytic properties of NiO and CNTs. Complete solar cell is fabricated using microfluidic analysis. Complete DSSC is tested using IV profiler at AM 1.5. Isc, Voc, FF and efficiency of solar cell is obtained. Comparison shows that NiO-CNTs based DSSCs are more efficient then NiO and CNTs.

Reference

- P. Joshi, L. Zhang, Q. Chen, D. Galipeau, H. Fong, and Q. Qiao, "Electrospun carbon nanofibers as low-cost counter electrode for dye-sensitized solar cells," ACS Appl. Mater. *Interfaces*, vol. 2, no. 12, pp. 3572–3577, 2010.
- [2] S. Bykkam, M. Ahmadipour, S. Narisngam, V. R. Kalagadda, and S. C. Chidurala, "Extensive Studies on X-Ray Diffraction of Green Synthesized Silver Nanoparticles," *Adv. Nanoparticles*, vol. 04, no. 01, pp. 1–10, 2015.
- [3] M. L. Parisi, S. Maranghi, and R. Basosi, "The evolution of the dye sensitized solar cells from Grätzel prototype to up-scaled solar applications: A life cycle assessment approach," *Renew. Sustain. Energy Rev.*, vol. 39, no. July, pp. 124–138, 2014.
- [4] H. Wu, D. Kong, Z. Ruan, P.-C. Hsu, S. Wang, Z. Yu, T. J. Carney, L. Hu, S. Fan, and Y. Cui, "A transparent electrode based on a metal nanotrough network.," *Nat. Nanotechnol.*, vol. 8, no. 6, pp. 421–5, 2013.
- [5] H. Yoon, "Current Trends in Sensors Based on Conducting Polymer Nanomaterials," Nanomaterials, vol. 3, no. 3, pp. 524–549, 2013.
- [6] N. Horiuchi, "Semiconductor lasers: Monolithic terahertz source," *Nat. Photonics*, vol. 8, no. 8, pp. 585–585, 2014.
- [7] B. E. Hardin, H. J. Snaith, and M. D. McGehee, "The renaissance of dye-sensitized solar cells," *Nat. Photonics*, vol. 6, no. 3, pp. 162–169, 2012.
- [8] G. P. Nanofiber, Q. Wu, Y. Xu, Z. Yao, A. Liu, and G. Shi, "Supercapacitors Based on Flexible," vol. 4, no. 4, pp. 1963–1970, 2010.
- [9] A. Sedghi and H. Nourmohammadi Miankushki, "Effect of Multi Walled Carbon Nanotubes as Counter Electrode on Dye Sensitized Solar Cells," *Int. J. Electrochem. Sci*, vol. 9, pp. 2029–2037, 2014.

- [10] M. Nogi, M. Karakawa, N. Komoda, H. Yagyu, and T. T. Nge, "Transparent Conductive Nanofiber Paper for Foldable Solar Cells," *Nat. Publ. Gr.*, pp. 1–7, 2015.
- [11] H. Y. Abbasi, A. Habib, and M. Tanveer, "Synthesis and characterization of nanostructures of ZnO and ZnO/Graphene composites for the application in hybrid solar cells," *J. Alloys Compd.*, vol. 690, pp. 21–26, 2017.
- [12] T. Spectronic, "Basic UV-Vis Theory, Concepts and Applications Basic UV-Vis Theory, Concepts and Applications," pp. 1–28.
- [13] S. Suhaimi, M. M. Shahimin, Z. A. Alahmed, J. Chyský, and A. H. Reshak, "Materials for enhanced dye-sensitized solar cell performance: Electrochemical application," *Int. J. Electrochem. Sci.*, vol. 10, no. 4, pp. 2859–2871, 2015.

Chapter 6: Conclusions and Proposed Future Work

6.1 Conclusion:

There are multiple conclusions based on the research. These conclusions are given below.

- 1. Carbon Nano-materials are highly conductive and low cost as compared to platinum so it CNTs could replace Pt for fabrication of counter electrode of dye-sensitized solar cells.
- 2. Preparation the composite of CNTs with metal oxides like NiO improve the electrical and catalytic properties of CNTs
- 3. On basis of CV analysis and Hall effects results, it become clear that conductivity and electrochemical properties of NiO-CNTs are better as compared to CNTs and NiO alone.
- 4. Efficiency of NiO-CNTs is better than NiO and CNTs alone.
- 5. Cost of carbon Nano-materials is much less as compared to platinum so it would be cost efficient to use carbon Nano-materials and metal oxide composites for DSSCs. This is also a goal to get low cost substation of platinum.

6.2 proposed future works:

Multiple metals composites can be prepared with carbon nanotubes (CNTs) and the counter electrode can be fabricated through these metal CNTs composites. Cyclic voltammetry (CV) and electrochemical impedance spectroscopy (EIS) also provide better insight of the counter electrode working.

Moreover, the comparison can be made by varying the thickness of deposition layer of composite on a conductive surface as well. Some organic materials based counter electrodes could also be fabricated. Recently multiple fruits wastes are used for this purpose in china and many other countries. Waste is being used in better way instead of polluting the environment.

Publications:

- [1] Ussama K. Barki, M. Bilal Khan, Zuhair S. Khan, Mariah Batool, Awais, "Poly (Aramid) and Poly (Propylene Oxide) composite based Polymer Electrolyte Membrane (PEM) for Polymer Electrolyte Membrane Fuel Cells," in *NanoSET-17, 25-27 Oct. 2017, CIIT, Lahore*, Lahore.
- [2] M. A. Mahboob, "Ni-CNT a Replacement of Pt for Counter Electrode of Dye Sensitized," in *NanoSET-17, 25-27 Oct. 2017, CIIT, Lahore*, Lahore.